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Protecting Dreams

Dreams open a doorway into the future. Dreams are the
subconscious manifestation of the desire to tumn the ordinary
into extraordinary. At Silkkbank, we value the dreams of our
customers and work towards realization of those dreams
through developing financial products and services. From
excellence in service to innovative products, we endeavor

to provide the best banking experience to our customers,
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Branch Banking

Every dream needs a destination. With Silkbank's
network of over 78 conventional and 10 Islamic
branches across Pakistan, we fulfill your financial
needs. Our experienced staff is trained to respond
to your queries while finding the best solutions
tailored to your needs. From Current and Saving
accounts to Term Deposits and Bancassurance
products, we have what it takes to help you achieve
your objectives. Get connected to growth and

SUCCESS.
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Alternate Delivery
Channels

Time is money and Silkbank offers many smart

SILKBAKE &

solutions to achieve that. Our Alternate Delivery
Channels are available anytime, anywhere. This
includes Mobile Banking, Internet Banking, VISA
Debit Card, Phone Banking and Utility Bill Payment
Services. Stay in touch at your convenience.
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Corporate &
Investment Banking

Corporates require more than just advisory services.
Our progressive and time-tested methods are built
around specialized handling of customer needs in
these ever-changing, fast-paced times. Therefore,
move forward with us and experience our expertise
in Capital Management, Debt and Equity Advisory,
Mergers & Acquisitions along with Trade & Cash

Management services for our select corporate and

middle market customers.
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Consumer Banking

Our commitment o long-term relationships with
customers is what drives us to deliver only the best.
Delivery of financial solutions through products like
Personal Loan and Ready Line enables us to bring
you closer to your dream lifestyle. Additionally, our
innovative Credit Cards offer unique privileges such
as 0% mark-up on Balance Transfer and an
attractive Rewards Programme to suit the lifestyles

of our customers.
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Small & Medium
Enterprises

Dreams require security and business requires
financial stability and prosperity. Silkbank offers
customized solutions to get you there and keep
you going. From managing your working capital
requirements to growing your business and
protecting it, we pave the way for you to succeed.
Qur products, which include Trade Services, Cash
Management, M'Power and SME Cash Ease make
the perfect match for your business needs.
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Emaan Islamic
Banking

When we recognize what you value, we evolve
with it. Ensuring your peace of mind and adhering
to best practices, our Shariah compliant services
help you manage your financial portfolio effectively.
Emaan Islamic Banking products and services are
Riba-free and Halal, designed in accordance with
Shariah rules. Find contentment and peace with

Emaan Islamic Bank.

& I ! i
& achieves S

W scantalion fes

perml'm f*%':::!-:=:'
I direction SYATELL

rath axpalient 1HE TS
g b B

ANNUAL REPORT| 2015




Sl LKFANI(I






SILKBANK 7~

Yes we can




Vision
Benchmark of Excellence in Premier Banking.
Mission

To be the leader in Premier Banking, trusted by customers
for accessibility, service & innovation; be an employer of
choice creating value for all stakeholders.

Core Values

Customer Focus

At Silkbank the customer remains at the core of all
activities ... Service Quality is our key differentiator.

integnity

At Silkbank we are honest and upfront maintaining the
highest levels of personal and corporate integrity.

Teamwork

Teamwaork is our key strength ... our success is in unity.

Creativity

Out-of-the-box thinking is the enabling factor for us to be
recognized as an innovative organization.

»

Meritocracy | -

Merit remains our key primary criteria for rewarding '
performance. |

Humility

Humility remains at the core of all our relationships.
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Products
& Services
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Products
and Services

Branch Banking

Silkbank Current Accounts

Caters to a plethora of financial nesds of a diverse customer base.

B ALL-IN-ONE ACCOUNT
Provides ultimate protection and security to customers with
amazing banking and transactional benefits.

B BUSINESS VALUE ACCOUNT
A unique business Current Account thal provides customers
with protection and transactional benefits tailored for any
business. |l is the first account that provides comprehensive
business inventory coverage for up io Rs. 10 million.

E ONLINE EXPRESS
Online Exprass gives the customer complete online solutions
under one roof with a variety of tier-based transactional
benefits.

H SALARY PREMIUM ACCOUNT
An exceptional Current Account offering a host of financial
convenience, protection and lifestyle benefits with hassle-
free salary processing.

H ASAAN ACCOUNT
Provides financial convenience through the simplest process
All it takes is a CNIC, an initial deposil of Rs. 100 and a one-
page form,

SILKBANK ASAAN ACCOUNT

Silkbank Savings Accounts

Silkbank Savings products offer a host of attractive features and
competlitive returns with the convenience of a Current Account.

B MUNAFA ROZANA
The anly Savings Account In Pakistan that pays profit In cash
dally. Profit on funds is calculated and paid Into the customer's
account on a daily basis.

B PLS SAVINGS ACCOUNT
Provides the benefits of a Savings Acecount with the convenience
of a Current Account.

ANNUAL REPORT| 2015

B SUPER SAVER ACCOUNT
Provides customers with the highest monthly returns on higher
deposits and profit calculation on a daily profit basis with a
manthly payoul.

Silkbank Term Deposit Accounts

® SALANA MUNAFA ACCOUNT
Offers the highest profit with payout on maturity, Customers
can also avail an overdraft facility of up to 90% with other
transactional benefils.

B SILKBANK MAHANA MUNAFA ACCOUNT
Offers the highest profit with monthly payoul. Customers
can also avail an overdraft facllity of up to 90% with other
transactional benefits.

Bancassurance

Silkbank offers one-window operation for customers to enjoy assorted
Insurance covarage/plans through a bouquet of products:
Mehfooz Har Pal, Roshan Mustaghbil, Silk Health Plan, Sunehra Kal,
Silk Health Line, and Silk Secure Takaful.

Alternate Delivery Channels

Direct Internet Banking

With Silkbank Direct Internet Banking, customers can-enjoy and
manage their accounts anywhere, anylime.

Silkbank Phone Banking

Why walk to the bank wihen you can lalk t© the Bank! Silkbank
Phane Banking officers ensure that customers' financial needs are
taken care of with ullimate accessibility. convenience and security,
247

Silkbank VISA Debit Card

Silkbank VDG, with local, intemational acceptance allows you 1o
enjoy discounts up to 50% on assorted merchants and outlets,
nationwide




Utility Bills Payment Service

Customers can now use their Silkbank VISA Debit Card at any
Silkbank ATM to pay their utility bills or top up their mobile phonss,
round the clock, free of chargal

Corporate and Investment Banking

Corporate Banking

Corparate banking is a one-stop shop for clients ranging from local
corporate to multinational companies, We understand customers’
business needs. which is why we offer customized solutions. Our
expenenced team gives our corporate customers complete attenfion
and ensures that they receive premium service always:

Investment Banking

Silkbank has an experienced and professional investment banking
team that has been a prominent player in the market. We provide
a complete array of Debit & Equity advisory and placemant services
throuagh our vast distribution network of potential investors.

Middle Markets

Upholding the motto of "Yes we can’, Silkbank stretches lo a

nationwide network fully equipped to the vast and extensive middle
market customers. Structured warking capital lines are provided
aleng with Current/Savings Accounts in arder to enhance trade
volumes of medium enterprises allowing them growth.

Consumer Banking

Personal Loan

Silkbank offers the best Personal Loan for all your needs. Now you
can apply for a fresh loan of up to Rs. Z million. You can also transfer
your cutstanding loans from other banks and avail a wide range of
benefits while enjoying the same monthly installment or even less.
With Silkbank Personal Loan, vou can live up your dreams and

enjoy life to the fullest. It is fast, convenient, flexible and affordable.

Silkbank Ready Line

Ready Line is an evergreen Running Finance facility specifically
designed fo meet your emergency financial needs with credit facility
of up to Rs- 2 million, it not only provides peace of mind but also
helps customers meet their emergency cash needs and that too
with the utmost convenience and freedom

Silkbank Credit Cards

The most innovative cards of the country, Slikbank Credit Cards
provide cusiomers with 0% mark-up for an entire vear upon transfer
with Card Design Personalization and Customization. Silkbank
Credil Card customers can enjoy up te 50% discount on assorted
merchants and outlets with the added facility of Extended Payment
Plan (EPP),

Small and Medium Enterprises

M'Power

Silkbank's M'Power is a running finance facliity, which is structured
according to your preferences and provides the best solution to
meet your financing needs with credit financing up to Rs. 15 million.
ithelps you to leverage every business opportunity thal comes your
way and glves you greater freedom to focus on every Importani
aspect of your business's growth.

SME Cash Ease

SME Cash Ease (Local Bill Discounting Program) is a liguidity
solution for SME level businesses to maintain a profitable working
relationship with their client companies.

Emaan Islamic Banking

Emaan Islamic Banking inaugurated in 2012 with 10 branches
nationwide is gearad lowards providing Shariah-compliant banking
products along with high level of customer satisfaction. Emaan
Istamic Banking offers an amay of products to meet the financial
needs of customears, including Current Accounts, Savings Accounts,
Term Depaosits, Takaful and saving plans.

Jie Dawn of

bMAAN

ISLAMIC BANKING

1 0 Branches
: ~in 8Cities...and Counting!
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I Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Munnawar Hamid, OBE Chairman
Adnan Afridi Director
Khalid Aziz Mirza ~ Director
Sadeq Sayeed " Director
shamsulHasan [

Tariq lgbal Khan, FCA ~ Director

Talha Saeed Ahmed | Director
Azmal Shahzad Ahmed Tarin President & CEQ
Shaukat Tann Advisor to the Chairman

Company Secretary

Uzman Naveed Chaudhary

Chief Financial Officer

Khurram Khan

Audit Committee

Tariq Igbal Khan, FCA _ Chairman
AdoanAlndi EEEICUECE

LELE Saeed Ahmed . Member
Wajih Zaidi Secretary

Risk Committee

Shamsul Hasan : Chairman
Sadeq Sayeed _ Member
Muhammad Alif Kauser Secretary
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i Board of Directors

Shaukat Tarin

Advisor to the Chairman

Tarig Igbal Khan
Director

Azmat Tarin
President & CEO

Khalid Aziz Mirza |
Director
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Munnawar Hamid, OBE Shamsul Hasan

_Chai_r_man A Talha Saeed Ahmed Director
Dieco — ]

Adnan Afridi
Sadeq Sayeed Director
Director i
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Profile of Board of Directors

Mr. Munnawar Hamid, OBE - Chairman

Mr. Hamid was elected as Independent Director and Chairman of the
Board. in March 2008 and was re-slected as an Independent Director
by the sharehoiders of the Bank. Mr. Hamid was also appointed as the
Chairman by the Board in August 2011 and also in August 2014 and
has held this position since then. Mr. Hamid gained expenence of
commerce and industry while serving in a major chemicals company,
ICI Pakistan Limited, as Chief Exacutive, as well as Chairman of a
nurber of subsidiary companies of Global Corporations in Pakistan,
which include ICI Pakistan and Pakistan PTA (now Lotlee Pakistan
PTALid.). He has also served in London as a Global Senior Corporate
Planner ICl Plc for its Pharmaceuticals, Agrochemicals and Seeds,
and especially Chemical Businesses, Subsequently, he was the Advisor
to the GEO of ICI Pl London, for South Asia. In addition to the Corporate
sector, Mr. Hamid has been associated with a number of Boards. high-
level consultative bodies, Public Sector Organizations, leading Advanced
Educational Institutions and the Financial Sector of Pakistan. In October
1997, -he was appointed Officer |n the Most Excellent Order of the
British Empire {OBE) by HM the Queen, for senvicas to ICl and Ecoriomic
Development in Pakistan. Mr. Hamid is a graduate from Punjab
University. and also holds BA {Hang) and a Master's degree from
Cambridge University {Gonville & Caius Callege), UK, He has aver 45
yvears of experience in the fields of business & corporate management
and operations. Mr. Hamid is also currently associated with the following
organizations:

n Linde Pakistan Lid
(formerly BOC Pakistan Lld.)

» The Aga Khan Universiy

Chairmari

- Member Board of Trustee,é
Gratuity Fund Trustee

Pravident Fund Trusiee

n The Aga Khan University
¢ The Aga Khan University

Mr. Tariq Igbal Khan - Director

Mr. Tariq lgbal Khan was elected as an Independent Director on the
Board of the Bank in December 2010 and was also re-elected as a
Director by the shareholders of the Bank in August 2011 and August
2014 and has held this pesifion since then. He is also the Chairmian of
the Audit Committes of the Board. Mr. Tarig lgbal Khan is the Ex-
Chairman of National Investment Trust Limited. He has also served on
vanaus positions in Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) and Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Mr. Khan has also
played a significani role as Pakistan Banks Association's Chairman.
Mr. Khan is a Charterad Accountant by profassion, and has over 30
years of experience. He has served on the Boards of various other
banks and companies. Currently he holds directorship in the following
companies:

ANNUAL REPORT | 2015

Name of Qrganization Poslition Held
# Pakhtunkhaw Energy Development Organization JREEiED
Listed Companies

u International Stesis Limited Directar
8 Lucky Cement Limited Director
u National Refinery Limited Director
# Packages Limited Directar
o Pakistan Gil Flelds Direclor
w Attock Refinery Limited Directar
Unlisted Companies

m FFC Energy Limited Director
# CAS Management (Pvt) Limited Director
Non-Profit Organization

# Islamic international Medical Trust Director
W High Altitude Sustainabiiity Trust Director

Mr. Sadeq Sayeed - Director

Mr., Sayeed was slecied as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of
the Bank in March 2008, was also re-elecied as a Non-Execufive Director
by the shareholders of the Bank in Augusi 2011 and August 2014 and
has held this position since then, He is also member of the Risk
Committee of the Board. Mr. Sayeed was appointed as Chairman of
Metage Capital Lid., an Investment firm based In London, In March
2011. Prior to this. Mr. Sayeed was the CEO of Nomura International
from 2008, having Joined the company in 2000 as Special Advisor. This
appointment followed the acquisition of the Lehman Brothers businesses
in EMEA and Asta In which Mr. Sayeed played a key role. In addition,
he was the Chairman of both the European Management Commitiee
and the European Capital Commitments Commitiee at Nomura, In 2011,
Mr. Sayesed refired as CEOQ of Nomura,

Praviously Mr. Sayeed had been responsible for 2 number of key stralegic
projects globally, inciuding the creation of Terra Firma Capital Partners,
a £2 pillion private equity fund. He was also responsible for creating the
joint venture between Rothschild and Nomura, in respec! of their global
investment banking activities. Mr. Sayeed has aver 30 years of experience
in Investment banking, including arbitrage trading, siructured finance,
fund management and financial advice. He has previously served as
Managing Director of Credit Suisse Firs| Boston, where he spent 15
years, and served as.a member of the Operating Committee. Prior fo
s global iInvestment banking career, he was Consultant to the Warld
Bank in Washington DC. Mr, Sayeed holds an under-graduate degree
in‘economics with concentration in electrical engineering, from
Massachusetts-Institute of Technology (MIT), as well as a Master's
degree in finance from MIT's Sloan School. Mr. Sayeed is an Associate
Scholar at Pembroke College, Cambridge. He Is also an Adjunct Professor
at Imperial College Business School, in London. He currenlly holds the
following positions:

Chairman
Partner

# Metage Capital Limited

n Sinthos Capital Advisors LLP







Senior Management Committee

Standing L to R: Masroor Qureshi, Shuja Akmed Alvi, Wajih Zaidi, Javed Yousuf Edhi, Junaed Rayaz Chaudhry, Uzman Naveed Chaudhary
Sitting L to R: Jawad Majid Khan, Jamil A. Khan, Geharulayn Afzal, Khurram Khan
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Standing L to R: All Kashif Rizvl, Imran Aslam, Kamran Bashir, Shahram Raza Bakhtiari, Mansoor Mukhtar, Umar Saeed Khan
Sitting L to R: Talha Saeed Ahmed, Azmal Tarin, Kasirn Feroze Khan, Muhammad Saqib Pal
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Corporate Profile

Background:

Silkbank is a scheduled commercial bank listed on all stock
exchanges in Pakistan with its Central Office located in Karachi.
On September 15, 2001, under the supervision of SBP, the
institution then known as Prudential Commercial Bank Limited
was acquired by Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment
Company (Pvt). Limited and renamed as Saudi Pak Commercial
Bank Limited.

On March 31, 2008, a Consortium comprising International
Finance Corporation, Bank Muscat S.A.O0.G, Nomura European
Investment Limited and Sinthos Capital Advisors (led by

Mr. Shaukat Tarin and Mr, Sadeq Sayeed) acquired a majority
stake in Saudi Pak Commercial Bank Limited, which was
subsequently rebranded as Silkbank Limited on June 01, 2008.

Major shareholders of the Bank as on December 31, 2015 are
Sinthos Capital comprising of Mr, Shaukat Tarin, Mr. Sadeq
Sayeed and Mr. Azmat Tarin, Ms/ Arif Habib Corporation Limited,
International Finance Corporation (IFC), Nomura European
Investment Limited, Bank Muscat S:A.0.G and

Mr. Zulgarnain Nawaz Chatta and Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chatta of
Gourmet Group.

The Bank is engaged in providing financial services via 88
branches located in 33 cities throughout the country and offers
a range of retail, consumer, corporate and Islamic products.

CONSORTIUM PARTNERS

\.

s
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i

aRLRRREE

International
Finance Corporation

7

IF

A member of the World Bank Group, IFC
foslers sustainable economic growth in

developing countries
4 M 8.uneli
<4 BankMuscat

Largest bank of Oman with assets of over
USD 15 billion, having significant presence
in the Middle East

NOAURA

A leading investment bank with nefwork in
over 30 countries and totaf assels of USD
221 billlon. Recently acquired Lehman
Brothers in Asia and Europe.

4
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Director's Report

For the year ended
December 31, 2015

Dear Shareholders,

The Diraclors are pleased to preseni the 2270 Annual Report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Economic Review

Pakisian's economy is improving both quantilatively and qualitatively, Major
successes In the oulgoing fiscal year include Improving economic growth
inflation contained at low levels. improvement in tax collection. reduction
In fiscal deficit, highet workers remittances, successful launching of 8 Sukuk,
foreign exchange reserves increasing significantly and the stock market
reaching new highs.

China and Pakisian have agreed to establish a China Pakistan Economic
Carridor batween the two countries. This corridor will serve as a means for
connectvity with major conseguential economic benafits and an opportunity
to uplift socio-sconomic conditions in the counitry

The Banking Sector

The Discount Rale was maintained at 5.5% during most past of the year
and banking sector spreads slipped by 43 bps, averaging 5.56% compared
{0-5.99% in the preceding year. The banks o shield thamselves and take
advantage of an additional yieid of 200 bps abave the prevailing T bill yields
invested heavily in PIBs which emerged as the leading investment avenue
I which Investment rose from Rs. 2,170 billlon-in CY-14 to Rs. 3,196 billion
in CY-15.

Advances made In the Banking Sector improved by Rs. 323 blllion during
2015

[=F

et
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Silkbank's performance during 2015

Overall Financial Performance

The Bank was successful In raising Rs. 10 billlion in 2015 through the Rights
|ssue to become MCR and CAR compliant.

The performance during the year 2015 in each of the main strategic areas
of focus was as follows:

@ COST OF FUNDS

In order to manage the coslt of funds, the Bank continued lo consolidate
the position by decreasing expensive deposits and replacing tham with
low cost deposits. Emaan banking also coniributed towards the growth
of a deposit base with a favorable CASA mix ratio and 50 support spreads.

B EXPENSE RATIONALIZATION

During the year, the management tndertook significant Initiatives In
organization restrucluning and rationalization end also to control rent and
other expenses of premises

B HIGH MARGIN CONSUMER ASSETS

Running finance and Personal loans also conlinued to axpand very
satisfactonly. followed by credit card. The ending net receivablas in the
consumer porifolls contribited Rs. 518 million 1o gamings before interest
& taxes.

Given the Bank's overall capital pasition successiully supported by the
recent Rights |ssue, the management deemed Il prudent to be aggressive
In its provisioning, even in cases where settlement had reached final slages
and the reversal of ihe sald provision was imminent. However, due lo the
timing of these transactions, the reversals could not materialize before year
end. The managemenl has presented lo the Board a dalailed plan for
reversal of the said provisions and are confideni that the.bulk of the provisions
recognized this year will be reversed in the first half of 2016. In addifion the
Bank's financial performance has also been adversely mpacted by the
significan! reduction in spreads as a consequence of tha unprecedanted
fall in discount rates.

The conseguent financial performance in the 2015 compared to 2014
despite the continuous & consistent improvement in the operational
performance of all businesses. was as follows:

Financial Performance

s Rs. in million
Financial Performance

Net mark-up income 3.099.630 3.460.117
Provisionsj/Reversal
Empal;nm: Ianrl oi'neré A3 (Seratd)
MNon mark-up income 1,894.323 1.720.363
Mon mark-up expense (6,109.278) {4,681.452)
 Profit before tax (1,839.702) 131416
Taw/{Raversal) of tax 128.097 (44 .5565)
Prafit after tax (1.711.605) |  86.860
Rupee
{Loss)/Eaming per share (0.58) 0.03

In wiew of the losses al year end. the Bank has not been able to declare
any dividend for the year.




Sectoral Performance

Wholesale Banking

& CORPORATE BANKING & MIDDLE MARKET

During the year 2015, the overall cost of deposits was reduced lo 4.80%,
an Improvement of 183 bps. The average Corporate Banking deposils
were Rs. 5.2 billion, whereas the average current account deposits were
Rs. 1.7 billion and the average advances portiolio amounted 1o Rs. 25.6
billion. As a consequence. Corporale Banking overall achieved a revenue
of Rs, 789 million and a margin before allocations of Rs: 495 milllon:

# INVESTMENT BANKING GROUP (IBG)

I8G spent most of 2015 working on intemal corparate finance initiatives
which culminated In a Rs. 10 billion Rignis Issue. At fhe same time it buil
a steady pipeline of debt and equity ransactions to be concluded post

the issuance of new capital

B TREASURY & FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

During the year, the Treasury realized a lotal capital gain of Rs, 69
milion in fixed Income and equity markets and took full advantage of the
arbitrage opportunity available in the market and booked a respectable
Interast income. It also eamed an income of Rs. 243 million in the foreign
axchange markel. Fixed Income sales of GOP securities to new and
existing clients also remained very active throughoul Lhe year

Retail Banking

Branch Banking

Branch Banking remains one of the muost critical businesses for the Bank,
serving over 128,878 customars, and consisting of approximately 74% of
the Bank's deposit hase. Branch Banking deposts reachad Rs. 60,117 million
during the year and mainiained & favorable CASA deposil mix of 91%.

All-In-One Account

All-in-Cine Account, which provides insurance coverage on ATM & over-the
counter cash snatching, mabile phone & vital documents snaiching, home
burglary as well as auto-insurance at as low a rate as 2.5% has now 3,208
customers and a deposil base of Rs. 1.38 billion

: ThEO n e and anly
that EranN{Sital

Business Value Account

Business Value Account, which provides inventory insurance of up 1o
Rs. 10 million, has grown to a deposit base of Rs. 0040 billion with 880
customers.

Online Express
Online Express has now a lotal deposit of Rs. 1244 billion, with 682,011
customers.

Sl
Take the Express Route
to Unlimited Free Transactions!

Munafa Rozana

Munafa Rozana a savings acegunt which pays profit In cash daily, has
achieved a deposit base of Rs, 3.83 billion with 8,429 customers during the
L

Consumer Banking

The Banking Consumer products have proved to be a generator of stable
margins for the bank over the last couple of years based on a well devised
strategy

Unsecured Portfolio

Lnsecurad Consumer loans include Pearsonal Installment Loan, Ready Ling
and Credit Cards. During the Year 2015 this porifolio maintained its leadership
position amongs! peer banks, and at the end of the year, the Ending Net
Receivablas in Unsecured products werg s, 11 billion contributing Rs. 518
millicn to eamings before interest & taxes.
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Director's Report

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Personal Loan

Silkbank Personal loan, a monthly Instaliment based loan (sunched In
November 2010 has now entered inlo its 6th year with 19,877 aclive
customers and a total recetvable of Rs. 4,520 million.

Keeping in view the existing market trends, various new initiafives were
taken throughout the year, This included multipte innovative and exciting
promotions / campaigns such as; "Apply for 5 years and pay markup for 4"
"Balance transfer on lower rate”, and "50% processing fee wawver for
matured customers if fhay wish o re-apply” elc. As par of the strategy and
to take advantage of the existing customer base, Ine Bank also increased
its emphasis on Loan Top-ups which not only helped the Bank in improving
porifolio yields but also in retaining the profitable cuslomers.

Silkbank Reaay Line, an unsecured running finance facility which allows
customers fo have speedy access {o available funds without any collateral
or security has become guite popular, This facility launched in July 2011
has grawn tremendously aver the years and now has a receivable of

Rs. 4,044 million with 26,087 active borrowers at the end of 2015. The
primary focus dunng the year was to allracl customers by channelizing
thelr existing spend onto Ready Line through varinus spend campaigns
offering prizes through lucky draws.

In-addition to the above, multipie campaigns were also launched throughout
the year customers to'enrall for e-biling and SMS alert facilibes by incentivizing
them with chances fo win excifing prizes such as, IPad mini, LED TV, iPhone
& ete, This nol only playad a key part in generating non funded income and
rationalizing stationery | courier costs bul also helped in reducing customer
complaints related to bill deliveries.
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Credit Cards continued to grow aggressively during the year 2015, The
total base crossed 65.000 cards and the receivables jumped by Rs. 580
millicn to clase at Bs. 2,459 million, The Silkbank Credil Card since its
launch has created a perception of a real value provider in the industry
based on the (0% APR offer coupled with the "Surprisingly Silkbank" retajl
aliiances

Secured Portfolio

Sllkbank M'Power, a product secured against residential and commercial
properiy has a lolal of 561 active borrowers with receivables of Rs. 3 5‘5,:
millior. Fresh lending however is currently on held to enable more focus
on high yielding products.

Home Remittance

The Home Remittance business disbursed Rs. 23.571 billion recording a
growth of 11.03% compared to the previous year with a potential for further
expansion

’kmth of
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Alternative Delivery Channels (ADC)

The Slikbank VISA Debit Card ("VDC") contirued to show strong growth
and card numbers increased to 101,960 showing a growth of 7.68%
compared to last year and VDC usage over Point of Sales and ATM showed
an increase of 22.10% and 12.69% respectively.




Bancassurance

Tha Bancassurance initiative under the Wealth Management product suite
was Initiated In the year 2008 and the Bank now manages over 8,500
policies and premiums of over Rs. 500 million as at December 31, 2015.
Dunng the year 2015, the business recorded a lolal révenue of Rs 445
millien with 887 covers, and maintained a strong renewal persistency ratio
of 75% for which the Bank was awarded a bonus by its insurance parinars
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Emaan Islamic Banking

Emaan Islamic Banking has successfully completed its third year of agerations
In 2015. The year as reported abave was lairly chailenging for the banking
Industry as a whole, but Emaan Islamic Banking maintained Iis posifion by
efficiently managing its existing pertiolio and also intfreducing new products
& services to ensure growth

ALLYOU NEED
TO OPEN AN
JOUNT

Emaan Islamic Banking deposits at the end of 2015 were Rs, 6.6 hiflion
with a healthy CASA mix of 72% and a cost of deposit of 4.81%. With &
partfolio of quality assets the ADR was 70% with a total financing of Rs
4.6 billion (Murabaha - Rs. 3.2 billion, Musawama - Rs, (.943 billion &
Diminishing Musharaka - Rs. 0.424 billion). The Bank has also launched
Letter of Credit and Letter of Guarantee products of Rs 0,255 billien and
Rs. 0.991 billion respectively during the year,

Emaan Service Quality has been on lop priority and lhe unit pridas itself
in having Service Quality embedded into every process. As a resull, the
unit performed extremely well in the ongoing internal service ratings and
dchieved a "Very Good" in Ihe last review

Technology

A number of technology based initiatives were taken by the Bank to enhance
customer experiences. During the year, VbV (Venfied by Visa) was faunched
by the Bank to-enable credlt card customers to conduct Internet based

SilkMoebile"

{ransactions with convenience & securily. The Bank has launched "3
for customears (o enable mobile based account acce:

o
an

The Bank has also launched its mabile application ("app") which provides
a host of Teatures, branch [ ATM locators and details on discounts & alllances,
The Bank 2lso strengthened Its biack end technology infrastructure by
establishing a new state of the art data-center which will further strangthen
service defivery to customers by providing mastimum uplime

Human Resource

In 2015, our Learning & Develapment focus was on Furictional & System
related rainings as well as training in Product, Sales and Service, Several
mid-carear and senior execulives were also Imparted fraining at leading
Business Schools including 1BA, IBP and LUMS and Learning & Development
inttiated programs through Computer Based Testing (BT} and introduced
an e-Learming Digital Library. The hiring process was automated to reduce
the Wwmaround fime and cost and in compliance of the Code of Corporate
Govemance, HRD launched a Code of Ethics awareness pmgram amongsl
staff, For better employee engagement, the Bank launched a "SilkClub™f
its employees, aimed at developing Informal relationships o foster grealer
camaradene and teamwork amongst slaff, as well as enhancing
interdepartmental coordination
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Special Asset Management Group (SAMG)

The SAMG of the Bank has once again exceeded its objectives during the
vear, and cantributed a net amaunt of Rs. 1,968 millon to the P&L Account
with a total NPL reduction of Rs, 2,166 million, The SAM {eam has also
recovered an amount of Rs. 4 million during the vear and the Real Estate
Assel Management team has successfully sold various Other Real Eslaie
Owned (OREQ) properties worth Rs. 819 million during the year

Risk Management Group (RMG)

The RMG continues o provide effechive support 1o busmess units alongwith
keeping a close watch on the assel portiolio qualiy.

[Dunng the year, RMG carried out an industry wide review of exposures in
the background of the prevalent econamic condilions and has also revised
the Credit Policy Manual in accordance with the amendments made by
SBP In Prudential Regulahions. RMG maintains a customer's "Watch list!
and has devised 3 joint strateqy Tor the smooth funclioning of accounts in
tonsultation with business units; and has regularly reviewed Risk Acceplance
Critena and diligently reviewed classifications and provisioning in close
lialson with business unils, every quarier. In addition In conjunction with [T,
it has developed |mproved reporting systems in fine with the latest
requrements and exploit the new system T-24 {o the fullest. Independert
masnitoring of the reasury function Through the middle office was implemented
during the year through a Web Tech system which essentially allows
monitoring under a live-environment. Consistent reglignment of the Crédit
Administration Departmen| (CAD) was also established o achieve befier
moenitoring and controls and finally, digitization of security decuments was
completed to achieve better record keeping and time saving

Service & Quality

In line with the core values of the Bank, our staff had shown unralentiess
and strong emphasis on consistent and superb service delivery. This is
eviden! from the Mystery Shopping results of 92% customer satisfaction
and a Net Promoter Score of 57%. based on an independent research

Relic bll:‘h{
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank is committed 10 grow Its business in 8 way thal is profitable and
sustainable for its employees & the communities it operates in, The Bank
continuad to provide support to a wide amray of causes and this year
supported programs for education & health, preservation of cufture & history
and promation of youth & sports. The Bank's leadership also endorsed

Board of Directors

lin order to fill the casual vacancy on the Board arising dus to the resignation
of Mr. Faisal Anis Sherwani, Nominee Director of Nomura European
Investment Lid, with effect from October 29, 2015, M/s. Arif Habib Corporation
Limited, now a major shareholdsr of the Bank, has nominated a Director
on the Board of the Bank with effect from January 18, 2016, The FFT
documents of the nominee director have been submitted to the SBF for
clearance.

The Board warmly extends its aporeciation to Mr, Falsal Anis Sherwani for
his valuable contribution to the Board The current composition of the Board
Is as under.

Types of Director Mo of Directors
Independanl Director

Non-Executive Diractor




Directors’ Training

The Board has been pravided with Lhe revised Code along with briefings
an various occasions-in arder for them to properly oversee the affairs of
the Bank. Three Directors of the Bank have obtained cerfification from
Pakistan Instilute of Corporate Govemance (PICG), whereas, three Directors
of the Bank stand exempled from the requirement of the said certification
and the rem: Directors will obtain it within the prescribed time. Dunng
the \yaar, a session for Directors Orientalion Course was also conducied
covering the applicable laws, rules and regulations under the Code of
Corporate Gavernance Prudential Regulations for Corparate and Commercial
Banking, Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Banking Companies Ordinance
1962:

w

vl

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The Board |s commtted Lo its respansibllities under the Code of Carporate
Governance of the SECP. In doing 50, it wishes lo make [he fallowing

statements:

aj The financial statements prepared by the management af the Bank
presant fairly its stale of affairs, the resull of its aperatian, cash flow
and changes in equily

b} Praper books of account of tha Bank have been maintained

¢} Appropnate acceunting policies have been consistently applied in
preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based
an reasonatte and prudent judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards as applicatile in Pakistan
have been followed In preparation of financial slatements and any
depariure there from has been adequately disclosed

&) The system of imternal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implementid and monitored. Managemant's statemant on intemal control
Is enclosed herewith which is endorsed by the Board as required by the
State Bank of Pakistan. The Board is ulimately responsible for the Bank's
system of Internal control and reviewing its effeciveness. However, such
a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve objectives and by its nature can provide only reasonable and
nol absolute assurance agamst material misstalement or loss

The process used by Ihe Board lo review the effectivensss of the system
of internal control includes, Inter alia, the foliowing;

[} An audit committes has been formed which has wrtten terms of
referance and reports lo the Board. L reviews the approach adopted
by the Bank's internal audit department, as well as the scope of and
its refationship with the external auditors. It also receives reports from
the Intemal audit, and any material conbrol weakness thal is identified
is discussed and agreed aclions are taken in areas of concern

An organization structure has been established which supports clear
lings of communication and bered levels of authonty with the delegation
of appropriate responsibility and accountability,

il Business strategies agreed at divisional leval were approved by the
Board. In addition there is an annual budgeting and sttategic planning
process. These strategies are reviewed during the year lo reflect any
significant changes in the business environment,

=

| The principal faatures of control framework Include:

& Evaluation and approvals procedures for major capital expenditure
and other fransachons.

B Regular reporfing and monitoring of financial performance using
operaling statistics and monthly managements accounts which
highlight key perfarmance indicators and variance from budget
and guarterly forecasts

8 Review ol the healih, safety, environment and centingancy
management processes and other significant policies

B Further, reviews of the system of internal control are also carmed
out by the internal audit department and management conclusions
on internal control are confirmed by divisional managament to the
Board

B Thera are no significant doubts upon the Bank's ability to.continue
a5 a going concern

W There has been no material depariure from the best practices of
corporate governance, as detailed in the hsting regulations
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Risk Management Framework

Concerted efforts have been camed oul over Ihe years for pmprovement
of the Risk Management function which have resuited in better control &
risk environment plus creating an overall "Risk Culture” within the Bank.
With the growing shift towards Basel Implementation and enhanced locus
for management of risk an an integrated basis following are some important
aspects of the Risk Managemenl Function at Silk Bank Limited:-

a) Credit Risk

Managing of credit risk is considered the key function at RMG. Indepentdent
Risk Management Units catering to the Corporate / Commercial / SME and
Consumer segments arg fully operational and clearly follow the laid oul
Procedures formuiated in the form of Policies { Manuals and Product
Programs. Credit Risk is thus continucusly monitored by the respactive
sanctioning umts: Broad based Credit Approval Authorities have algo been
delegated to various approvers for credit sign off. Credit Administration
Linits are in place for all segments of the Bank, effectively handling all
documentation and safe keeping. The Bank has developed in- house Obligor
Risk Rating (ORR) modals | systems for Comporate, Commercial and SMEs,
which are regularly reviewed/ updated. RMG also has a robust Eary Waming
Systemn (EWS) reparting In place. These processes are capable of
identifying problem loans at an early stage for timely remedial actions.
Results for eslablishing these syslams are now beginning to reflect in the
management letter issued by the external auditors and the annual reports
complied by the SBPF inspection teams through reduced insiances of system
and procedure failures.

Under Consumer Banking, a separate collection unit operates for follow-
up and recovary of loans. A centralized Spacial Assets Managemient Unit
s alse In place and |s primarily responsible for handling the NPL aceounts
and recovery process: The unit is performing its task In a very professional
and efficient manner. Besides varnious management committees of the Bank
Credit Risk is-also averviewed by Ihe Risk Commitiee of the Board onan
ongoing basks, Regular guidance is sought from the Board on credit related
matters and the findings implemented in letter and spirit. Marked reduction
in NPL portfolio has ensued resultantly.
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b) Market Risk

A Middle Office function (independent of the Treasury) has been established
within tha Bank with the primary responsibility of monitoning the Market
Risk function and onward reporting o the Head of Risk Management Group
Investmant Committes (IC), Market Risk Palicy Commitiee (MRPC) and
Assel and Liabliites Committee (ALCO) are also functioming lo supervise
and approve Market Risk exposures. At Silkbank, we have a well-defined
Liquidity Policy, duly approved by the Board. Presantly, various excel based
tocls are in use lo generate MIS on Market Risk-and reparting to the senior
management and regulators. We have also successhully set up the "Web
Tech systam and T-Risk Module" which is capable of genarating sophisticated
madeling reports and independent monitoring of varieus treasury functions
I & live environment

¢) Operational Risk

Under Operational Risk, appropriate Operational Policies and Procedures
have been documented and disseminated for managing Operational Risk
on & Bank wide basls. Qperational Risk Manual has since been prepared
and approved by the Board. Risk Control seli-assessment questionnaires
have also been sent across la varous segmants of the Bank and based
on-thejr feedback we plan to implement the process on a Bank wide basis
during the current year.

An Intemmal Contral Unif is also operational with the primary task of overviewing
and ensuring Implementation of various operational guidefines and monitoring
tools and reconciliation across the Bank. Addilionally, an independent
Imternal Audil function is also in place within the Bank, reporting to the Audit
Committee of the Board. A Proper Compilance Depariment is also functional,
inter alia 1o ensure that all lagal and regulatory requirements are properly
addressed in addition to the implemantation of Anli Money Laundering and
Know your Customer (AMLKYC) Policies.

I this respect, approprate traming to refevant staff has been mparted
Including training an strict monitering of transactions and AMUKYC. Business
Continuity Plan (BCP) is also In place 1o deal with any eventuality. Sefi-
Assessmant of Key Risk Indicators (KRI's} and compliance of standards,
codes and guidelines is regularly camied out and documented




Board of Director's Meetings during 2015

During the year 2015, following Board and its Commitiees meetings were held. Attendances by the Directors wers as follows.

Board Meatine Audit Committee Human Resource Risk Committae
. SRR, Meetings Committee N Meetings
Directors — — | e e

| Held Attended ‘ Held Attended ‘ Held Aftended Held Altended

Mr. Munnawar Hamid, OBE 5 2 2

Mr-Sadeq Sayead 4 4 4
Mr. Tang lgbal Khan, FCA | | | T T
Mr. Shamsul Hasan 4 4 4

Cad

Mr. Faisal Anis Sherwani {
Mr, Khalid Aziz Mirza 4 4 4
Mr. Adnan Africi : 4 B 5
Mr. Talha Sased Abmed : 3 p 2
Mr. Azmat Tarin 4 4 4

Leave of absence was granted to the Direclors who could nat attend the meeting,

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as required under the Companies Ordinance 1884 and the Code of Corporate Governance is as follows:

Combined Pattern of CDC & Physical Shareholding as at December 31, 2015

Number of
Shareholders

Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage %

Birsctors and their spouse(s) and minor children 3 123,081,705

02 Associated Companies, Undsfiakings and Relatad Parties’ 7 6,336,322.270 81.24

03 Execulives 33 50,196,001 054

04 Public Sector Companiés and Corporations 6 25,070,152 [ 032

05 Banks, Development Finance Instititions,
Non-Banking Finance Companies; Insurance Companies. 10 1.821.778 0.02
Takatul, Modarabas and Pension Funds

0B Mutual Funds 2 25,130,417 | 0.32

07 Foréign Companies 3 23,266,676 [ 0.30

08 General Public - Foreign 8 5,021,054 ' 0.06

09 General Public - Local 7.601 616,513,248 _ 7.90

10 Others 102 693,399,564 [ 761

Total 7,799,809,955
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The aggregate shares held by the Directors, Chief Executive and their spouse and minor children along
with Associated Companies, Undertakings, Related Parties and Mutual Funds as at December 31, 2015

~ |
- ks . D
g eld
5.No, and their Spause and Minor Children 8 123,061,705 1.58%
01 | awar Hamid, OB 12514 '
02 Adnan Afrid i 1,000
03 ] alieh 73 500
04 adeq Sayeed 102,817,019
05 arig Igba 5 '1655_}_9?
06 amsul Hasa 500
ov A Mg ahzad Ahmed T4 20,013,115
08 arah Naz Ta o Azmal Ta 200,000
S.No.| Associaled Companies, Undertakings and ; 6,336 ! 1.
o ﬁmm pam{aﬁ &mmm"g ) 7 6,336,329,270 81.24%
01 h abib Corporatio e 2,553.901,924 32.87%
0z srnationa ance Corporatio 702,689,067 8.01%
03 Omura Opea a5ime ited 356,676,342 4.57%
04 Ba cal 340 315,776,969 4.05%
__ 05 qarnain Nawa atiha 678,126,000 8.69%
06 bair Naws altha 415,626,000 5.33%
o7 aukat Fayaz Ahmad Te 1.303.532.968 16.71%
‘S.No.. Mutual Funds. 2 25,130,417 0.32%
o D slae NAFA Stocl g 4,250,000 0.05%
0z B o Naliona ssime & 20,880 417 0.27%

*Iri terms of Board Resolution dated Decamber 10, 2015, Mr. Shaukat Tann has further transferred 299 441,178 shares of the Bank 1o
Individuals, not falling within the category of sponsors of the Bank. The current shareholding of Mr. Shaukat Tarin In the Bank is 1,106,091,792
shares. These shares Include one hundred and two million {102,000,000) shares of Mr. Shaukat Tarin placed with Peari Securities Limited.

During the year, Mr. Ejaz Ahmed Malik, Regional Head - Real Estate Asset Management has purchased 200,000 shares from the open
market. The Bank has reporied the same to the Stock Exchanges under chapter V, regulation 16 (6) of the Listing Requlations. Apart from
this, there was no other trading In Silkbank shares carried out by any of the Directors and Execufives or their spouses and minor childran
during the year, apan from subseribing 1o the Rights lssue as per their entitlements

Auditors

The retiring auditors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment till the conciusion of the next Annual General Meeting. The Audit
Committee of the Board has recommeanded M/s. Deloitte Yousuf Adil. Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors, as.the statutory auditors
of the Bank for the financial year 2016.

Credit Rating

The long term entity rating of the Bank Is A- (Single A Minus) and the shor term rating Is A-2 (A-Two) as determined by “JCR VIS" Credit
Rating Company Limited. The outlook on the assigned rating is "Stable"
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Notice of the 22
Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Second Annual General Meeting of Silkbank Limited will be held on Monday,
March 28, 2016 at 11:00 am at Best Western Hotel, Islamabad, to transact the following business.

Ordinary Business:
1. To confirm the minutes of Twenty First Annual General Meeting held on March 24, 2015.

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited financial staterments of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2015
together with the Directors' and Auditors' reports thereon.

3 To appoint auditors to hold office till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration.
Special Business:

To pass the following resolutions, as special resolution, with or without modifications, additions or deletions;

1. AMeration in Articles of Association of the Bank.

To consider and if thought fit, the alteration in the Articles of Association of the Bank, as follows. The alteration in
Articles of Association of the Bank is subject to the necessary approval from the State Bank of Pakistan and
confirmation from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

(i) Article 109 of the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby substituted by the following Article:
109) Dealing with Directors:

“Any dealing with the Directors shall be in accordance with the Companies Ordinance, 1884, as amended from lime
to time and the regulations/notifications issued by the State Bank of Pakistan and/or the Commission, from time to
time”

(i) Definition of "Code of Corporate Govemnance” as defined in the Definitions at Point No. 2 (vi) of Articles of Association
of the Company be and is hereby substituted by the following Definition:

Code of Corporate Governance:

"Code of Corporate Governance means the Code of Corporate Governance introduced in 2012 by the Commission
and any change made therein, from time to time"

(iii) Following para will be added in Arlicle No. 85 of Articles of Association of the Company:
B5) Proxies:

"In case of E-voting, both members and non-members can be appointed as proxy in accordance with procedure
for appointment as formulated by the Company in compliance of Companies (E-voting) Regulations, 2016, as
amended from time to time."

2, To approve the scale of fee payable to the Chairman and to Non-Executive and Independent Directors for
attending Board and Committee meeting.

To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as an ordinary resolution:

"Resolved that the scale of fee as determined by the Directors, for attending Board and Committee meetings of
the Direclors, be and is hereby approved on post facto basis, as under:

- Board meeting: Pak Rs. 635,000/- for the Chairman and Pak Rs. 475,000/- for other members.

- Committee's meetings: Pak Rs. 475,000/- for the Chairmen as well as for the members."
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Statement of Material Facts under Section 160(1) (b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating
to the said Special Business:

1.1 Alteration in Article 109 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

In order to align the Articles with the updated regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has decided to
alter Article 109 of the Articles of Association of the Company in accordance with the Companies Ordinance, 1984
and the State Bank of Pakistan requirements, from time to time.

1.2 Definition of "Code of Corporate Governance":

In order to align the Articles of Association of the Company with the besl practices in Corparate Governance, the
SECP has revised the Code of Corporate Governance in 2012. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company
has decided to amend Clause 2 (vi) of the Articles of Association of the Company accordingly.

1.3 To appoint both members and non-members as proxy for E-voting:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has introduced the E-voting Regulations 2016 dated
January 22, 2016, making shareholders as part of the decision-making process of their company through electronic
means fo the extent provided by the law.

In compliance of the said regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has resolved to amend the Aricles
of Association of the Company accordingly.

The proposed amendment is being made in the Articles of Association to align the Articles with the required
regulations.

2.1 Director’s Remuneration in Pak Rupees:

The shareholders of the Bank in their 215 Annual General Meeting held on March 24, 2015, had approved the
Director's Remuneration for attending Board and Committee's meetings as follows:

Remuneration for attending
Board meeting

Remuneration for attending
Committee meetings

Chairman Us § 6.000/- US § 4,500/
Board Members Us & 4,500/- US § 4.500/-

The Board in its 148" meeting held on October 29, 2015, decided to pay Director's Remuneration in Pak Rupees
instead of US$, in following manner,

Remuneration for attending | Remuneration for attending
Board meeting Committee meetings

Chairman Pak Rs. 635,000/- . Pak Rs. 475,000/-
Pak Rs. 475,000/-

Board Members Pak Rs. 475,000/

Any Other Business:

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair,

By the Order of the Board

Uzman Naveed Chaudhary

Company Secretary/Head of

Investor Relations and Legal Affairs
Karachi, March 04, 2016
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Report of the Shari'a Board
Emaan Islamic Banking, Silkbank Ltd.

For the year ended December 31, 2015

EMAAN

THLAMIC-BANK NG

February 26, 2016

While the Board of Directors (BOD) and Senior Management are solely responsible to ensure that the operations of
Emaan Islamic Banking (EIB) are conducted in a manner that comply with Shari'a principles at all times, we are required
to submit a report on the overall Shari'a compliance environment of EIB.

To form our opinion as expressed in this report, the Shari'a Compliance Department (SCD) of the bank carried out
reviews, on test check basis, of each class of transactions, with the relevant documentation and process flows.
Furthermore, we have also reviewed the work of the internal Shari'a review. Based on the above and in light of the
information submitted to the Shari'a Board (SB). we are of the view that:

i.. EIB has complied with Shari'a rules and principles in the light of fatawa, rulings and guidelines issued by the SB.
Different Shari'a-compliant products were developed in collaboration with different departments of the Bank and
approved by the SB. Furthermore, the SB reviewed and endorsed all relevant documents and material that were
submitted lo it for its approval.

il. EIB has complied with direclives, regulations, instructions and guidelines related to Shari'a compliance issued by
SBP in accordance with the rulings of SBP's Shari'a Board.
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Financial Statements

For the year ended
December 31, 2015
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Total Assets - 2015 (Rs. in Bilion) |

Advances - net
Rs.61.1,46% " _ Fixed Assets

Rs. 4.5, 3%

Investments - nat

" » Deferred Tax
Rs. 35.0, 26%

Rs. 4.2, 3%

o Other Assets
Rs. 141, 11%

Cash and Balances
Rs. 7.5, 6%

T Lendings to Fl
% Rs.6.8, 5%

Total Assets - 2014 (Rs. in Billion) |

Advances - net

Rs. 59.0,57%* S Fixed Assets
i ’ * Rs. 4.6, 4%

" ;
Investments - net / Deferred Tax

Rs.18.1, 18%
s 2 "~ Rs.3.9,4%

o Other Assets
Rs. 8.9, 4%

Cash and Balances
Rs. 5.2, 5%

Lendings to FI
* Rs.3.0,3%
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Graphical Presentation
of Financial Progress

Earning Assets Vs. Non-Earning Assets (Rs. in Billion)
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Deposit Mix - 2015 (Rs. in Billion)

Term Current
Rs. 34.6, 43% Rs, 23.3, 29%
Savings
Rs. 23.2, 28%
Deposit Mix - 2014 (Rs. in Billion)
Term Current
Rs. 29.3, 42% — = Rs,19.0, 28%
Savings

Rs. 20.4, 30%
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Graphical Presentation
of Financial Progress

Performing Vs. Non-Performing Loans (Rs. in Billion)
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Sector Wise Advances - 2015 (Rs. in Million)

Electronics and

Financial : :
e — —— = electrical appliances
Rs. 2,147, 3% Rs. 2}0271 3%
Sugar
Individuals Rs. 4,848, 7%

Rs. 13,087, 20%

Agribusiness

Power (electricity), * Rs. 970. 1%
S. y 1'/0

Gas, Water, Sanitary
Rs. 669, 1%

Footwear and
Leather garments

Rs. 306, 1% GHhers
Rs. 35,550, 53%
Automobile / _
Transportation gﬂemlcal &
Equipment * armaceuticals
Rs. 733, 1% Rs. 1,885, 3%
Textile Cement
Rs. 4,306, 6% ° * Rs. 517, 1%
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Graphical Presentation
of Financial Progress

Sector Wise Advances - 2014 (Rs. in Million)

Einancial Electronics and
. electrical appliances
Rs. 1,724, 3% Rs. 2’129, 39,

_ Sugar
* Rs. 3,889, 6%

Individuals
Rs. 10,637, 17% °
Power (electricity), _ Agribusiness
Gas, Water, Sanitary * | Rs. 573, 1%
Rs. 705, 1%

Footwear and
Leather garments =———

Rs. 323, 1%
Others
Rs. 34,866, 54%
Automobile / :
Transportation Chemical &
Equipment *— ——— Pharmaceuticals
Rs. 879, 1% Rs. 2,043, 3%
Textile Cement
Rs. 6,323, 10% © " *Rs. 325, 1%
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Statement of Financial Position
as at December 31, 2015

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 7 7,343,670 | 5,102,984
Balances with other banks 8 194,085 139478
Lendings to financial institutions 9 6,777,944 | 3,000,000
Investments - net 10 34,999,068 | 18,105,414
Advances - net b 61,074,207 | 58,966,877
Operating fixed assets 12 4,496,648 4 563,290
Deferred tax assels - net 13 4,180,969 3,937,182
Other assels 14 14,070,688 | 8,920,628

133,137,259 102,735,853
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 15 2413342 i 2,153,091
Borrowings 18 33,230,182 21,742,246
Deposits and other accounts 17 81,097,581 68,770,255
Sub-ordinated loans - | -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 18 14,145 | 17,105
Deferred tax iabilities - _
Other liabilities 19 1,805,347 | 1,552,329

118,560,597 94,235,026
NET ASSETS 14,576,662 8,500,827
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 20 77,998,099 26,716,048
Discount on issue of right shares (56,566,725) {13,284.674)
Reserves 180,134 180,134
Advance against shares subscription 1.3 2,000,000 2,000,000
Convertible preference shares 21 2,200,000 2,200,000
Accumulated loss (11,334,916) (9,444 123)

14,476,592 8,367,385
Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 22 100,070 133,442
14,576,662 8,500,827

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

The annexed notes 1 to 47 and Annexures | and Il form an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Azmat Tarin Munnawar Hamid, OBE Tang lgbal Khan Shamsul Hasan
President & CEQ Chairman Director Director
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Profit And Loss Account
for the year ended December 31, 2015

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
Mark-up / return / interast eamed 25 8,933,315-5 9,429,216
Mark-up / retum / interest expensed 26 (5.833,685) (5,969.009)
Net Mark-up / interest income 3,099,630 3,460,117
Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net 1.3 {539355 " ('?_é.tl_ﬁ_
Provision against consumer financing - net 113 (88,190 (127,402
Recovery against written off loans 3,823 4,004
{Provision) / reversal for diminution in the value of investiments - net 10.9 (5,344 2,537
Impairment in the value of investment 10.71 {45,373] (167,675
(724,377) (367.613)
Net mark-up / interest income after provisions 2,375,253 3,082 504
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Fee, commission and brokerage income 976,838 | 868,263
Dividend income 40,652 47,168
Income from dealing in foreign currencies 181,696 196,672
Gain on sale of secunties - net 27 650,948 346,592
Unrealized gain an revaluation of investments - held-for-trading 101 1.291 169,053
Other income 25 42,898 | 92,615
Total non-mark-up / interest income 1,894,323 1,720,363
4,269,576 4,812,867
NON MARK-UP /| INTEREST EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 29 (5.268,719) | (4,892,044
Other (provisions) / (write offs) / reversals - net 30 {762,976) 38,019
Other charges 3 (77.583) | (27.427
Total non-mark-up | interest expenses (6,109,278) (4,681,452}
{1,839,702) 131415
Extra ordinary / unusual items - =
(LOSS)/ PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (1,839,702) 131,415
Taxation - Current re | E
- Prior (92,322 -
- Deferred 220,419 : f44.555}1
32 128,097 (44.555)
(LOSS) ! PROFIT AFTER TAXATION (1,711,605) B6.860
Rupee
Basic (loss) / earnings per share 33 (0.58) 0.03
Diluted (loss) / eamings per share 33 {0.58) 0.02

The annexed notes 1 to 47 and Annexures | and Il form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Azmat Tann Munnawar Hamid, OBE Tarig lgbal Khan Shamsul Hasan
President & CEQ Chairman Director Director
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended December 31, 2015

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
{Loss) | profit after taxation {1.711,605) £6.860
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account
Remeasurement (loss) / gain of defined benefit plan 36.1.2 |f1'3_,541'}: 14,643
Related tax effect 4,739 | (5,125)
{8,802) 9,518

Comprehensive (loss) / income transferred to equity (1,720,407) 96,378
Components of comprehensive income not reflected in equity
Deficit on revaluation of assels (52,001) (422.243)
Deferred tax asset on revaluation of assets 18,629 147,784

(33,372) (274,459)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 and Annexure | and |l form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Azrnat Tarin Munnawar Hamid, OBE Tang lgbal Khan Shamsul Hasan
President & CEQ Chairman Director Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended December 31, 2015

Convertible | Acoumulated Total
) eference 05 Equity
Shares
Note
Balance as at January 01, 2014 26,716,048 (13,284 674) 162,762 - 2.200.000 (5,526.843) 6,267,287
Total comprehensive income for the year 2014
Profit after tax for the year ended December 31, 2014 - - - - - 86,860 86,860
Other comprehensive incoma - - - - - 9.518 9,518
Total comprehensive income for the year 2014 - - - - - 96,378 96,378

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of iked assels

on account of incremental depreciation- pet of ax 22,3 - - - - - ara 3720
Advance against shares subscription 1.3 - - - 2.000.000 - - 2,000,000
Transfer 10 statutory resamnves = - 17372 - (17;372) -
Balance as at December 31, 2014 26,716,048  (13.284,674) 180,134 2000000 2.200.000 (9.444123) 8,367,385
Total comprehensive income for the year 2015
Loss after lax for the year ended Decamber 31, 2015 - - - - - (1,711,605) (1711808
Other comprehensive income - - - - - (8,802} {8.802
Total comprehensive income for the year 2015 - - - - - (1.720407)  (1,720407)
Share subseripfion money for issue of right shares 203 - - &.000,000 - = 2.000.000

Issuance of right shares al discount 203 51282081 (43,282,051) - (8,000.000)
Share Issue cost - - - -
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fived assets

on account of incremental depreciation - netof tax 223 - - E - - 2495 2495

(172881} (172881}

Balance as at December 31, 2015 77,998,009  (56,566,725) 180134 2,000,000 2,200,000  (11,334,916) 14,476,592

* Stalutory reserves represent amount set aside as per requirements of section 21 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962.

The annexed notes 1 to 47 and Annexure | and |l form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended December 31, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss) / profit before taxation
Less : Dividend income

Adjustments for non-cash items

Depreciation

Amaortization of infangible assets

Amortization of premium / (discount) on investments

Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net
Provision against consumer financing

Impairment in the value of investments

Unrealized gain on revaluation of Investments - held-for-trading
Share of profit from associate

Other provisions / (reversals)

(Gain) f loss on sale of fixed assets

{Increase) [ Decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions
Net investments in held-for-trading securities

Advances
Other assets

Increase / (Decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable
Borrowings

Deposits
Other liabilities

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Jeirssinuces oo

Munnawar Hamid, OBE
Chairman

_,/é-pwﬁu— gt

Azmat Tarin
President & CEQ
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Note

12.2
12.3

1.3
1.3

101
28
30

12.5

2015 2014
Rupees in '000
(1,839,702) 131,415
{40,652) (47, 168)
(1,880,354) 84 247
357,8131 385,732
86,106 | 82212
120,555 F (2,724
589,293 79,077
88,190 | 127,402
45373 | 167,675
{1.291# (169,053
(13,041) {9,392
762,976 | (38,019
{1,365) 70
2,034,609 622,980
154,255 TO7 227
(3,777,944} (2,553,141)
2,363,241 {43.576)
(2.784,813) (3.135.834)
{5,936,893) (2,343,318)
{10,136,409) (8,075,869)
260,251 {594,309)
11,487,936 | 10,360,271
12,327,326 (663,197}
253,018 (66,587
24,328,531 9,036,178
14,346,377 1,667,536
{84,552) (127.141)
14,261,825 1,540,385

4t S

Tarig lgbal Khan
Director

Shamsul Hasan

Director




Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended December 31, 2015

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investment in available-for-sale securities (19,457.997) {3.512.922i
Dividend received 43,198 49 714
Proceeds on disposal of operating fixed assets 12.5 49,593 79,055
Net investment in operating fixed assets _ {425,505) (398,607)
Net cash flows from investing activities (19,790,711) (3,882,760)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Shares issue cost (172,881) -
Proceeds fram issuance of right shares 8,000,000 2,000,000
Finance lease obligation paid , (2,960) (3,052)
Net cash flows from financing activities 7,824,159 1,986,948
Increase / (Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 2,295,273 (345,417)
Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the year 5,242 462 5,687,879
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 34 7.537,735 5,242 462

The annexed notes 1 to 47 and Annexure | and Il form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Azmal Tann Munnawar Hanmid, OBE Tarig lgbal Khan Shamsul Hasan
President & CEQ Chairman Director Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

71

7.2

7.3

9.1

9.2

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
Local currency 7 1,607,864 1,009,734
Foreigr currencies 641,176 432,336
With State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in 7.2
Local currency - current account 3,551,543 2,329,060
Fareign currency - current account 73 377,792 332,722
Foreign currency - deposit account 1,064,273 937,905
With National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) in
Local currency - current account 101,022 61,227
7,343,670 5,102,984

This includes national prize bonds amounting to Rs. 4.18 million (2014: Rs. 5.05 million).
Deposits with SBP are maintained to comply with the statutory requirements of SBP issued from time to time,

This represents US Dollar settlement account maintained with SBP.

2015 2014
Note Rupees in "000
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
On current accounts 53,781 66,654
Outside Pakistan
On current accounts 140,284 72.824
194,065 139,478
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse repo) 9.2 5,946,221 3,000,000
Foreign placement 9.3 314,223 B
Bai Muajjal 8.4 517.500 -
6,777,944 3,000,000
Particulars of lending
In local currency 6,463,721 3,000,000
In foreign currencies 314,223 -
6,777,944 3,000,000
Securities held as collateral against lending to financial institutions
2015 2014
Further Further
Held by Bank given Total Held by Bank  given as Total
as collateral collateral
Note Rupees in '000
Pakistan Invesiment Bonds 921/ 2.150,000 1,250,000 3,400,000 3,000,000 - 3.000.000
922
Market Treasury Bills 921/ 574,821 1,871,400 2,546,221 - - -
922
2,724,821 3,221,400 5,946,221 3,000,000 B 3,000,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

9.21 These have been purchased under the resale agreements at mark-up rates ranging from 6.40% to 6.45% (2014: 9.75%
to 10.00%) per annum with matunties in January and February 2016.

9.2.2 The market value of collateral held against reverse repurchase agreement lendings as of December 31, 2015 is Rs. 6,182
million (2014: Rs. 3.131 million).

9.3 These have been placed with a foreign bank as pledge against issuance of SBLC favouring VISA at the interesl rate of
0.26% per annum with maturity in February 2016.

9.4 This represents outright purchase of GOP ljara Sukuk {G1S) on deferred payment basis (Bai-Muajjal) at return of 6.84%
per annum with maturity in November 2016.

10 INVESTMENTS - NET
2015 2014
Held by Given as Total Heldby  Given as Total
bank collateral bank collateral
Naote Rupees in ‘000

10.1 INVESTMENTS BY TYPES:
Held-for-Trading Securities
Pakistan Investment Bonds 10.3 45,923 260,257 306,180 - 2,500,368 2,500,368
Available-for-Sale Securities
- Market Treasury Bills 10.3 | 4,428,514 |119,108,191 ||23.536,705|| 3,522,238 E,342=1?*3i 9,864,417
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 10.3 | 1,910,522 || 6,052,915 7,963,437 586,897 2,83?.536' 3,474,433
- GOP ljara Sukuks 10.3 | 2,100,000 - | 2,100,000 || 1,106,265 - || 1,108,265
- Termn Finance Certificates - Listed 10.4 27,967 - 27,967 25,000 - 25.000
- Terrn Finance Ceriificates - Unlisted 10.5 27,038 - 27,038 12,215 - 12,215
- Shares in listed companies 913,332 - 913,332 788,736 - 788,736
- Shares in unlisted companies 10.6 5,680 5,680 5.680 - 5,680

10.7 9,413,053 25,161,106 34,574,159 6,047,031 9,229,715 15,276,746
Held-to-maturity securities

- Shares repurchase (fully provided) 74,910 - 74,910 74,910 - 74910
Associate
- SPI Inusrance Company Limited 10.8 85,002 - ‘85,002 71,961 - 71,961
Investments at cost 9.618,888 25,421,363 35,040,251 65,193,802 11,730,083 17,923,985
Less : Provisions for diminution in

value of Investments 10.9 {89,370) - {89,370) (84,026) - (84,026)
Investments - net of provision 9.529.513 25,421,363 34,950,881 6.109.876 11.730.083 17,839,859
Unrealized gain on revaluation of

investments - held-for-trading 43 1.248 1,291 - 169.053 169,053
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of

avallable-for-sale securities 221 39,549 7.347 46,896 (22.217) 118,619 98,402
Total investments at market value 0,569,110 25429958 34,999,068 _6,087,659 12,017,755 18,105,414
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

2015 2014
Mote Rupees in '000
10.2 Investments by segments
Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bills 10.3 23,536,705 9864417
Pakistan Investment Bonds 10.3 8,269,617 5,874,801
GOP ljara Sukuks 10.3 2,100,000 1,106,265
33,906,322 16,945,483
Term Finance Certificate, Debentures,
Bonds and Participation Term Certificates
Term Finance Certificates - Listed 104 15:?":9"-3? 25,000]
Term Finance Certificates - Unlisted 10.5 27,038 12,215
55,005 37.215
Fully paid-up ordinary shares
Listed companies 913,332 788,736
Unlisted companies 10.6 5,680 5,680/
919,012 794,416
Other investments
Investment in associate 10.8 85,002 71,961
Shares repurchase (fully provided) 74,810 74.910|
_ 159,912 146,871
Investments at cost 35,040,251 17,923,985
Less : Provision for diminution in the value of investments 10.9 {89,370) (84.026)
Investments - net of provision 34,950,881 17,839,959
Unrealized gain on revaluation of held-for-trading investments 1,291 169,053
Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale securities 22.1 46,896 96,402
Total investments at market value 34,999,068 18,105,414
10.2.1 Strategic investments
Available-for-sale securities
Ordinary shares - Unlisted 10.6 5,680 5,680
Associate
SPI Insurance Company Limited 10.8 85,002 71,961
90,682 77.641
10.3 Particulars of Federal Government securities
Maturity Principal Coupon Coupon mark-up/
Note period payment rate | yield payment
Market Treasury Bills 10.3.1 Jan 2016 to Sept 2016 On maturity 6.28% 1o 7.50% At maturity

Pakistan Investment Bonds 10.3.2
GOP ljara Sukuks

July 2016 to March 2025

On maturity 8.75% to 12.00% Semi-annually

June 2017 to December 2018 On maturity  4.39% o 5.89% Semi-annually

10.3.1 These include securifies having face value of Rs. 760 million (2014: Rs. 110 million) pledged with various financial
institutions. Out of these, securities having face value of Rs. 883 million (2014: Rs. nil) have been pledged with Global
Industrial and Defence Products (GIDS), Pakistan as guarantor. Further, securities having face value of Rs. 67 million
(2014: Rs. 110 million) have been pledged with United Bank Limited on account of issuance of letter of guarantee (for
guaraniee commission) favoring Arif Habib Corporation Limited being the guarantor for issuance of Bank's convertible
preference shares (refer note 21).

10.3.2 These include securities having face value of Rs. 47.70 million (2014: Rs. 47.70) pledged with SBP and National Bank

of Pakistan as security 1o facilitate T.T. discounting facility to branches of the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

2015 2014
Credit rating Amount Credit rating Armount
Rupees in "000 Rupees In'000
10.4 Term Finance Certificates - Listed
Jahangir Siddigui Company Limited AA+ 12.500] AA+ 25,000
Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited AA- 15,467 | Al -
27,967 25,000
10.4.1 Particulars of Listed Term Finance Certificates
Particulars Redemption terms  Profit rate per Profit
annum payment Maturity
Jahangir Siddigui Company Limited In' 8 semi annual 6M kibor + 2.4% Semi - annually 30-Oct-16

instalments starting
from April 2013

Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited In 16 quarterly 6M kibor + 2% Quarterly 18-Apr-16
installments starting
from October 2012
2015 2014
Credit rating Amount Credit rating Amount
Note Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000
10.5 Term Finance Certificates - Unlisted
Azgard Nine Limited (fully provided) 10.5.1 D D 8,780

Gharibwal Cement Limited
(fully provided) * -
Pak Libya Holding Company Limited AA

D 3,435

27,038 12,215

* This represented investments in non-investment grade TFC's as per Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).

10.5.1 These include zero coupon Privately Placed TFCs of Azgard Nine Limited acquired against markup settlement of Rs. 8.78
million on the credit facilities provided to Azgard Nine Limited. The amount is fully provided for in the financial statements.

10.5.2 Particulars of Unlisted Term Finance Certificates

- Redemption terms  Profit rate per Profit .
|
f‘amcu ars  annum _payment Maturity
Azgard Nine Limited (note 10.5.1) 7 semi annual Zero coupon  Semi annually 31-Mar-17
instalments commencing
from the 24th month
ending after
March 31, 2012
Pak Libya Holding Company Limited 10 equal semi annual 6M Kibor + 1.6% Semi annually 7-Feb-16
instaliments
2015 2014
Name of CEO Credit rating Amount Credirating  Amount
Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000
10.6 Ordinary Shares-Unlisted (fully provided)
Pakistan Export Finance Guarantee Limited Mr. S.M. Zaeem Unrated 5,680 Unrated 5,680
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

10.7.1 During the year ended December 31, 2012, 8,704,640 shares of Agritech Limited were acquired from Azgard Nine Limited
as part of multiple agreements including Master Restructuring Agreemenis (MRA). These shares were acquired al an
agreed price of Rs. 35 per share, The market value of these shares as al December 31, 2015 is Rs. 8.35 (2014: Rs.7.75)
per share resulting in an impairment loss of Rs. 223.27 million.

As per the most recent SBP letter No. BPRD/BRD-(Policyy2014-11546 dated June 27, 2014 on this matter, 100% impairment / provision
is required upto December 31, 2015, resulting in impairment of Rs. 45.37 million {2014: 80.68 million) during the current year.

10.8 Investment in Associate
Name of company Chief Executive Proportion of ownership Place of Principal
Officer interest incorporation activity
SP| Insurance Mian M. A. 23.08% (2014: 23.08%) Pakistan General
Company Limited Shahid Insurance
10.8.1 Summarized financial information in respect of associate based on latest available financial statements as at September 30,

2015 is set out below:
September 30, September 30,

2015 2014
Rupees in "000
Total assets 706,921 645,444
Total liabilities 338,581 333614
Mel assets 368,340 311,830
Net premium revenue 353,180 302,215
Profit for the period {after tax) 39,811 22,455

10.8.1.1 Summarized financial information of associate is based on financial information for quarter ended Septeimber 30, 2015 because
financial statement of assaciate for the year ended December 31, 2015 are not available at the time of authorization of issue
of these financial statements. There is no difference between the proportionate share of net assels of associate and its carrying
value accounied on equity method therefore, no reconciliation is required.

10.8.1.2  There is no share of contingencies and commitments from associate as at September 30, 2015 and 2014.

2015 2014
Rupees in "'000

109 Particulars of provision
Opening balance 84,026 86,563
Charge for the year 3.7::1 ‘ = ‘
Reversals for the year (34 {2,537
5,344 {2.537)
Write off -
Closing balance 89,370 84.026
10.10 Particulars of provision in respect of type and segment
Available-for-sale securities
Ordinary shares - unlisted 5,680 5,680
Term Finance Cerificates - unlisted 8.780 3.436
Held-to-maturity securities
Shares repurchase 74,910 74,910
89.370 84,026
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

10.11 Investment in Un-listed Shares, Term Finance Certificates and Bonds

10.11.1 Investment in fully paid up unlisted ordinary shares (fully provided)

2015 2014 Paid up value per Name of investee 2015 2014

share Rupees

No. of ordinary shares Rupees in "000

568,000 568.000 10 Pakistan Export Finance Guarantee 5,680 5,680
Chief Executive Mr. 5.M. Zaeem
10.11.2 Term Finance Certificates - listed
Paid up
Name of investee No. of value per 2015 2014
certificates held certificate Rupees in '000
(Rupees)
Jahangir Siddigul Company Limited 10.000 5,000 12,500 25,000
Pakistan Mobile Communication Lid. 780 20,000 15,467 =
27 967 25,000
10.11.3 Term Finance Certificates - unlisted
Paid up
Name of investee No. of value per 2015 2014
certificates held certificate Rupees in ‘000
(Rupees)
Gharibwal Cement Limited (fully provided) 1,195 5,000 - 3,435
Azgard Nine Limited 1,756 5,000 8,780 8,780
Pak Libya Holding Company Limited 22.005 5.000 18.258 -
27.038 12.215
2015 2014
Note Rupees in "000
11. ADVANCES - NET
Loans; cash credits, running finances, etc. i
In Pakistan I 61,896,411 57.868,559
QOutside Pakistan - -
61,896,411 57,868,559
Islamic financing and related assets 11.4.3 4,647,752 5,745,328
Bills discounted and purchased (excluding treasury bills)
Payable in Pakistan I 169,893 134,761
Payahble outside Pakistan 331,284 668,491
— 501,477 803,252
Advances - gross 67,045,340 64,417,139
Provision against non-performing advances - specific 11.3 {5,455,331) {5,022,650)
Provision against consumer finance - general 11.3 _{515.802] (427 ,612)
Advances net af provisian 61,074,207 58,966.877
11.1 Particulars of advances (Gross)
11.1.1  In local currency 67,004,990 64,209,096
In foreign currencies 40,350 208.043
67,045,340 64,417,139
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for the year ended December 31, 2015

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
11.1.2 Short Term (for upto ane year) 38,538,608 32,342,726
Long Term (for over one year) 28,506,732 32,074,413
67,045,340 64,417,139
11.1.3 Islamic financing and related assets Annexure -Ii
Murabaha financing 11.1.3.1 3,280,752 2,095,181
Musharaka financing 11:1:3:2 - 3.450,147
Musawammah financing 11132 943,000 =
Diminishing Musharaka 424,000 200,000
4,647,752 5,745,328
11.1.3.1 Murabaha financing
Financing 2,410,098 2,031,398
Advances 870,654 63.783
3,280,752 2,095,181

11,1.3.2 During the year, Musharaka financing of Rs. 943 million (in respect of land purchased from external parties) was converied
to Musawammah financing. Further, during the year, the Bank terminated Musharaka financing agreements of Rs. 2,507
million and transferred such amount to non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (refer note 14.2), The previously
accrued / uncollected markup of Rs. 269 million in respect of these financings (which was condoned by SBP) until December
31, 2014 has been reversed in these financial statements,

11.2 Advances include Rs. 8,520 million (2014: Rs. 8,222 million) which have been placed under non-performing status as detailed

below,
2015 2014

Classified Provision Provision Classified Provision Provision

Category of classification - specific Advances required held Advances required held
{Domestic) (Domestic)
Rupees in ‘000

Sub-standard 962,278 121,076 121,076 364,371 39,445 39,445
Doubtful 738.233 129,494 129,494 545,927 62,005 62,005
Loss _ 6,819,402 5204,761 5204,761 _ 7,311,649 4,921,200 4,921,200

8,519,913 5455331 $5.455331. 8221947 5022650 5022,650

11.3 Particulars of provision against non-performing advances
2015 . 2014
Specific General Total Specific  General Total
Note Rupees in ‘000

Opening balance _ 5022650 427,612 5450262 5131967 300,210 5432207
Charge for the year 1,986,292 88,190 2,074,482| | 1,105665 127,402 1,233.067
Reversals (1,396,999} - l}1.395‘999l | {1,026,588) - (1,026,588)|
Net charge for the year 589,293 88,120 677,483 79077 127402 206479
Amounts written off 15 (156,612) - (156,612) (188,424) - (18B.424)
Closing balance 5455331 515802 5971133 5022650 427,612 5,450,262
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11.3.1  The reversal of provision for the current year includes Rs, 1,153.92 million against certain non-performing loans due to sell
off of debt / assignment of Bank's rights to debt to a private company and an individual under "Debt-Property Swap”
transactions (refer note 14.2).

11.3.2 SBP vide vanous circulars has amended Prudential Regulations in respect of provisioning against non-performing advances
under which the benefit of Forced Sale Value (FSV) has been allowed for plant and machinery under charge, pledged stock
and mortgaged residential, commercial and industrial properties held as collateral against non-performing advances for five
years from the date of classification.

As of December 31, 2015, total FSV benefit taken against all loans and advances amounts to Rs. 1,253 million (2014: Rs.
1,351 million), net of tax, which shall not be available for payment of cash or stock dividend / bonus to employees.
As at December 31, 2014, SBP had allowed the Bank certain additional relaxations in respect of FSV benefit, which expired
in September 2015.

11.3.3  As at December 31, 2015, the Bank has availed the benefil of relaxation from provision of Rs. 600 million under Regulation R-8 Prudential
Regulations against certain non-performing loans, which has been granted by SBP through its letter dated February 27, 2016,

11.3.4 General provision represents provision made equal to 1.5% of the consumer secured performing portfolio, 5% aof the consumer
unsecured performing portfolio and 1% on small enterprises performing portfolio as required by the Prudential Regulations
issued by the State Bank of Pakistan for Consumer and Small Enterprises Financing.

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
11.4 Particulars of provision for consumer financing - general
Opening balance 427,612 300.210
Charge for the year 88,190 127,402
Reversals el T
Closing balance 515,802 427.612
11.5 Particulars Of Write Offs
11.5.1  Against provision 156,612 188,424
Directly charged to profit and loss account - =
156,612 188,424
11.5.2 Write offs of Rs. 500,000 and above Annexure | 142,572 174,234
Write offs of below Rs, 500,000 : 14,040 14,190
156,612 188,424

11.5.3 Details of loan write off of Rs. 500,000 and above

In terms of sub-section (3) of section 334 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the statement in respact of wrtten-off loans
or any other financial relief of Rs. 500,000 or above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended December 31, 2015 is given in
Annexure - |. However, these wrile-offs do not affect the Bank's right to recover the debts fram these customers.

2015 2014

¢ = L . Rupees in "000
11.6 Particulars of loans and advances to directors, associated companies, etc. P

Debts due by directors, executives or officers of the Bank or any of them either
severally or jointly with any other persons

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,805,530 1,113,505
Loans granted during the year 701,231 1,241,370
Repayments / adjustments (342,528) (549,345)
Balance at the end of the year 2,163,833 1,805.530

Debts due by companies or firms in which the directors of the Bank are / (were)
interested as directors, partners or in the case of private companies as members

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,190,282 778,814
Loans granted during the year 4,424,337 4,320,967
Repayments / adjustment (3,936,960) (3,909,499)
Balance at the end of the year 1,677,659 1,190,282
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Details of loans and advances to associates, subsidiary and other related parties are given in note 40,

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
12. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 12.1 242,621 265312
Property and equipment 12.2 3,865,106 3,969,454
intangible assets 123 288,921 _ 328524
4,496,648 4,563,290
12.1 Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 76,332 67,074
Advances to suppliers and contractors 166,289 198,238
242,621 265,312
12.1.1  Movement in capital work-in-progress
Opening balance 265,312 35112
Additions during the year 425,505 416,332
Transferred to property, equipment and intangible assets (448,196) (186,132)
Closing batance 242 621 265312
12,2 Property and equipment
2 s 5
Cosl [ Revalued Amaunt Accumulabed Depreciation Pt Book
10 A af Baat hsat  vahmessl  Ratest
Jamzry 0,  Adjustmeni Additions  Oisposals December, Janwary 0,  Afjustment. Chamgufor  Disp B M, Decambor 1, dapreciati
25 015 2085 fhe yes s 2015
Rupees 00
Froafoy Land - 1224 126,484 o S 326 484 a P " 226484
Lesehold Land - 122,18 1223 1,807,321 - - 1,807,321 - - - - fs07
Bulidngs o Leasshoid Land - 1222 357401 = = S5T.461 174,329 - 47802 2224 135240 %
Bufdings on Freahold Land 10,306 - - 10,306 3,356 - a5 ags [ h
Lapsshold |mprovements B8 22 - 46,728 - 80,648 527028 B3840 11,768 364,280 10%
Famie & Fistue #1010 5537 - wasyy 158 . 087 181,645 9,541 10%
DOifer Equipman 427 E51 161} e - 410,500 352,842 - 589 . 362,532 T8, 66 %
Cormpuers & MIS Eguipment 875,730 (d] 43,758 {1801 B0ETSE  TEGAZI : 64,778 [tamy  B3Eee B850 20%-3333%
Wekiges 488,761 243,361 (436,551} 595 671 215,352 . 100,877 188,323, 207,807 368,064 0%
5,151,058 401691 (1303831 4396 219620 35012 o0 fMp 2462825 3851EN
hasets held under inonce leags;
Other Eduigrnant 18,184 - 18,184 75 3664 4668 13,535 0%
December 31, 2015 6,169,240 $01EA3 (138.352) 6402500 2,180.795 IETEI (80134 2AGTABA 3BES06
o
Cos! I Revanied Amoon Aruma i Depreciatipn P Bk
et Ay at heat bhrg valie 38 ot Raim.oof
danuang 01, Adpistnen ey Ospogas December 31, danuany M ApuatirEl Chamalor Diposats Decembard?, Decemer 31, deprecislon
e - B \L 3 i yea: i _T0i4
Aupaes n 000
Freshald Lanid - 1251 J3 484 326,44 338484
Leazshold Lard - 1221 i | - = 1907 521 - - . .
Briikfings on Leasshold Lend [risia ) amh - (22525) BET 481 127384 3407 {502 174,338 5%
Bulkdings on Freehold Lan 10,8978 [T - . 10,308 2,541 515 3,426 5%
Laasehiold nprovemens HI7 58 - BAE BE3E22 A48 376 TE A 527,028 . B 0%
Figmiture & Fixtune 2EB TR 4134 ranm 135,704 22785 |58 589 4 10%
Crhar Equiprment 400 2 - 8,360 = 27 85 2400 - 352843 74,808 0%
Corgnitirs & MIS Eoulpener 2506 ) 5,085 A5 [E R 112,250 ae  TeEAm AT -20% - 34.5a%
Vediiclas 488 pid - 133755 {133.525| 489 181 21 BA 77 (V5.480) 295 383 273,804 e iy
RO T 167958 (I67408) 651056 1802440 384 757 (TB3TT) zlsafm 3950235
Aaiets Nedd under inancs eass
CEner Equipmerd 8184 181 875 875 7214 20.00%
Decambar 31, 2014 6,141,024 (G5 186,132 (1A7,502) 150,248 1.B32 440 8RR (TBATY)  ZAmaTas 3.089 454
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13.1 Movement in temporary differences
Balance at | Recognised - Balance | Recognised Balance
January 01, |  inprofit Rf:m::d at December |  in profit Rf::“q:':f 3t December
2014 and loss. 31, 2014 and loss 31,2015
Rupees in '000
Deductible / (Taxable) temporary differences on:
Provis:on for dimmutlon in
value of livestments 41,748 57,798 - 249 5do 12,108 - 111,654
Provision agalinst non-performing advances 2,104,316 57,612 - 2,161,928 278,932 - 2 440,860
Uniused tax losses 1,340,549 (220,238) - 1,120,313 (308,579) - 721,734
Provision anainsl other dssets E . 258,292 . 25B,202
Unabsorbed tax deprecation 818,567 - . 818,567 34,001 - 852,564
Accelerated tax depreciation {244 BOS) &0 271 - [184,534) 35,665 - {148 B59)
Surplus on revaluation of investments {180,223) - 146 482 (33,741) = 17,327 {16,414)
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assels [26.876) - 1,302 (25,574) - 1.302 (24,272)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (14,198) - (5,125) (15,323) - 4,739 (14,584)
3,839,078 {44,555) 142,659 3,937,182 220,419 23,368 4,180,969

13.2 The Bank has an aggregate amount of deferred tax asset of Rs. 4,181 million which represents management's best eslimale
of the probable benefits expected to be realised in future years in the form of reduced tax liability as the Bank would be
able to setl off the profits earned in those years againsl losses carried forward and other taxable temporary differences
relating to prior years. The Bank has prepared five years financial projections for future taxable profits, which have been
approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank, to assess the recoverabilily of deferred tax assels. The projections involve
cerfain key management assumptions underlying the estimation of fulure taxable profits. The determination of future taxable
profits s most sensitive lo certain key assumptions such as recent capital injection, growth of low cost deposits, growth in
high yield consumer advances, investment returmns, branch expansion plans, potential provision against assets, interest
rates, cost of funds and expected recoveries of classified loans. Any significant change in such assumptions may have
an effect an the recoverability of the deferred tax asset. Management believes that it is probable that the Bank will be able
to achieve the profits and, consequently, the deferred tax asset will be fully realised in future.

13.3 Status of tax and other details are disclosed in notes 32.2 and 32.3 to these financial statements.

2015 2014
Note Rupees in ‘000
14 OTHER ASSETS
Income { mark-up accrued inlocal currency 2.108.584 2528453
Income { mark-up accrued in foreign currencies 1,159 2,715
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 14.5 552,487 561,426
Advance taxation 453,470 368,918
MNet defined benefit asset 36.1.1 41,669 55,209
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims -;6:!-3"9?397 482222%
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
with buy back option with customers 388,465 334.914
14.1 & 14.2 11,285,062 5,157,141
Branch adjustment account 2,364 -
Unrealised gain on derivative financial instruments 14.4 26,845 49,655
Others 322,104 220,530
14,793,744 5,944 .047
L.ess: Provision held against other assets 14.3 (723,056) (23,419)
14,070,688 8,920,628
14.1 Aggregate market value of non-banking assets acquired In satisfaction of claims 11,982,158 5,979.958
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14.2

14.3

14.3.1

14.4

14.5

15

16.

16.1

These include properties aggregating to Rs. 2,431.86 million (including registration cost of Rs. 271.88 million) against which
debts previously partially / fully provided aggregating to Rs. 2,221.13 million (including mark-up of Rs. 258.86 million) were
assigned / sold / novated. The debis have been assigned / sold / novated al the values offered by the seller of the properties.
These also include transfer of properties from loans and advances due to termination of Musharaka financing agreements
of Rs. 2,507 million (refer note 11.1.3.2). These properties and certain other properties included in non-banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims are currently un-developed and have been evaluated based on the valuation reports from
valuers on Pakistan Banks Association's list of approved valuers.

2015 2014

MNote Rupees in '000
Provisions against other assets
Opening balance 23,419 23,419
Charge for the year 14.31 699,637 ‘ - |
Reversals - | | = |
Net charge for the year 30 699,637 -
Amounts written off - -
Clasing balance 723,056 23.419

This represents impairment / provision held against properties acquired under satisfaction of claims
Unrealized gain on derivative financial instruments

Contract / Notional amount Unrealised gain

2015 2014 2015 2014
-------------- Rupeesin'00-----~-—--~-—-~

Forward exchange contracts 6,962,229 5.154,542 26,845 48,923
Equity futures s 47,802 TR ; 732
6,962,229 5202344 26,845 49,655

This includes advance of Rs. 15 million paid to the Advisor to the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Bank against
monthly advisory services fee.

2015 2014
Rupees in ‘000
BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan 2,413,342 2,153.091
Outside Pakistan - -
2,413,342 2,153.091

BORROWINGS

In Pakistan 33. 114,577 21,379,547

Outside Pakistan ; 115,605 ) 362,699
33,230,182 21,742,246

Particulars of borrowings with respect to currencies

In local currency 33,114,577 21,379,547

In foreign currencies 115,605 362,699
33,230,182 21,742,246
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16.2

16.2.1

16.2.2

16.2.3

16.2.4

17

174

2015 2014
Note Rupees in "000
Details of borrowings secured | unsecured
Secured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan (re-finance)
Export refinance scheme 16.2.1 2,099,670 3,199,470
Long term finance - export oriented projects 16.2.1 - 382
Repurchase agreement borrowings 16.2.2 25,639,264 11,979,695
27,738,934 15,179,547
Unsecured
Call borrowings 16.2.3 2,080,000 6,200,000
Borrowing from other financial institutions 16.2.4 59,848 185,866
Trading liability 3,295,643 -
Overdrawn nostro accounts _ 55,757 176,833
5,491,248 6,562,699
33,230,182 21,742,246

The Bank has entered into agreements for financing with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for extending export finance
to customers. As per the agreements, the Bank has granted SBP the right to recover the oulstanding amount from the Bank
at the dale of maturity of the finance by directly debiting the current account maintained by the Bank with SBP. These
borrowing are repayable within six months. These carry markup rates ranging from 1.50% to 3.50% (2014: 5.50% to 6.50%)
per annum.

These represent funds borrowed from the local interbank money market against government securities carrying interest
rate ranging between 6.11% to 6.50% (2014: 9:50%) per annum with maturities up to January 2016.

These represent unsecured borrowings from the local money market carrying interest rate ranging from 6.95% to 7.50%
(2014: 9.9% to 13%) per annum with maturities up to January 2016.

This represents borrowing in foreign currency and carry interest rate ranging from 2.82% to 2.89% (2014. 2.77% to 2.87%)

per annum.
2015 2014

Rupees in "000

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers

Fixed deposits 34,140,750 28,655,490

Savings deposits 20,257,192 18,265,332

Current accounis - non-remunerative 21,472,804 17,889,766

Margin accounts - non-remunerative 987,425 719,372

Others 823,770 370,250
77,681,941 65,900,210

Financial institutions

Remunerative deposits 3,368,691 2,802,189

Non-remunerative deposits 46,949 67,856

3,415,640 2,870,045

81,097,581 68,770,255

Particulars of deposits

In local currency 73,804,972 62,028,488

in foreign currencies 7,292,609 6,741,767
81,097,581 68,770,255

SILKBANK 7~

Yes we can




Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended December 31, 2015

18 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
2015 2014
Minimum Financial Principal Mirurmum Financial Prncipal
lease charges for outstanding lease charges for outstanding
payments future periods pEyments future periods
Rupees in '000
Mot later than one year 4,794 1,449 3,345 5,087 2243 2,854
Laler than one year snd not later than five years 12,382 1,582 10,800 18,255 4 04 14,251
Over five years - - - - . .
17,176 3,031 14,145 23,352 6.247 17,105

18.1 The Bank has acquired solar panels under finance lease from NBP Leasing Limited. The lease term is 5 years and the

discounting factor used is 6 months KIBOR + 4%.

2015 2014
Note Rupees in ‘000
19. OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up / return / interesl payable in local currency 487,424 583,088
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies 9,787 2,325
Un-earmed commission and income on bills discounted 61,739 58,661
Accrued expenses 94,116 86,702
Unrealized loss on derivative financial instruments 19.1 45,542 144,015
Branch adjustment account - 38,135
Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 86,736 86,736
Workers' Welfare Fund (\WWF) 36,975 36,975
Advance received against fulure sale of nan banking assets 150,718 91,506
Advance received against future sale of fixed assets 118,500 -
Gratuity payable to outsourced staff 28.2 36,123 20,946
Others 677,687 403,240
1,805,347 1,552,329
19.1 Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts
Contract / Notional amount Unrealised loss
2015 2014 2015 2014
Rupees in '000
Forward foreign exchange contracts 6,688,102 10,659,164 45,542 144,015
20 SHARE CAPITAL
20.1 Authorised capital
2015 2014 2015 2014
MNo. of shares in 000 Rupees in "000
10,500,000 4,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 105,000,000 40,000,000
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22, SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX

Surplus on revaluation of

- available for sale securities
- fixed assets

221 Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of available for sale securities

Federal Government securities

Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds
GOP ljara Sukuks

Fully paid-up ordinary shares

Listed companies

Term Finance Certificate, Debentures,
Bonds and Participation Term Certificates

Term Finance Cerlificates - Listed
Term Finance Certificates - Unlisted

Related deferred tax liability

22.2 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
Related deferred tax liability

22.3 Reconciliation of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

At the beginning of the year
Surplus realized on account of incremental depreciation - net of tax
At the end of the year

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

231 Direct credit substitutes
23.2 Transaction-related contingent liabilities

Guarantees favouring
Government
Banking companies and other financial institutions
Others

233 Trade-related contingent liabilities
Letters of Credit & Acceptances

234 Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debt
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Note

2.1
222

12.2.1

23.41&234.2

2015

2014

Rupees in "000

30,482 652,661
69,588 70,781
100,070 133,442
573 15,204
15,251 132,689
22.600 (2,334
B,581 {49 251
{135) 4
26 -
46,896 95,402
(16,414) (33,741)
30,482 62,661
93,860 96,355
(24.272) (25,574)
69,588 70,781
96,355 100,075
(2,495) {3,720)
93,860 96,355
8,839,726 7,033,057
73,199 779376
3,152,207 1,594,841
__ 4085803  _ 4.714,168
342,051 195,088
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25,

26.

27,

28.

28.1

Note
MARK-UP | RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to:
Customers
Financial institutions

On investments in:

Held-for-trading securities
Available-for-sale securities

On deposits with-financial institutions

On call money lendings

On securities purchased under resale agreements
Profit on Bai Muajjal

MARK-UP /| RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposils

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Call borrowings

Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan under exporl refinance scheme
SWAP money market expense

Others

GAIN [ (LOSS) ON SALE OF SECURITIES - NET
Government securities

Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds
GOP |jara Sukuk Bonds
Shares - listed
Term Finance Certificates
Mutual funds

OTHER INCOME

Rent on property
Rent on lockers
Gain / (loss) on sale of property and equipment - nat 12.5
(Loss) / gain fram nan-banking assets and profit from
sale of or dealing with such assets - net 281
Postage, telex and other service charges recovered
Share of profit from associate
Early loan termination charges

2015

2014

Rupees in '000

6,797,603 7,834,980
‘ 12?5331‘ 121,306
1.766.615 1,327,841
1,893,946 1,449,147
382 315

398 437
237,283 144,337
3,703 :
8,933,315 9,429,216
3,944,343 4,626,246
1,168,713 493,272
325,191 333,536
106,774 231,192
283.015 278.407
5,649 6,446
5,833,685 5,969,099
103,003 15,294
456,961 64,146
5,949 19,119
82,238 244,751
2,797 (8,687)
S 11,969
650,948 346,592
5,046 3,373
9,815 10,366
1,365 (70)
(52,531) 15,180
24,824 21.892
13,041 9,392
41,338 32 482
42 898 g92.615

During the year, the Bank sold propertiss having book value of Rs. 819 (2014: Rs. 577 million) for Rs. 766 million (2014:

Rs. 592 million).
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2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
29. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 2,416,253 2,176,932
Charge for defined benefit plan 36.1.3/29.2 71,662 73,909
Contribution to defined contribution plan 36.2 64,321 60,904
Non-executives directors' fees, allowances and other expenses 19,853 23,711
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc. 693,869 605,561
Guarantee commission paid in respect of CPS 21 81.400 81,400
Legal and professional charges 354,012 230,928
Communications 239,978 190,642
Financial charges on leased assels 1,931 1,048
Repairs and maintenance 298,372 241,148
Stationery and printing 61,667 65,249
Security charges 80,342 72,128
Advertisement and publicity 125,598 91,991
Depreciation 12.2 357,813 385,732
Amortization of intangible assets 12.3 86,106 82,212
Auditors' remuneration 291 10.401 10,598
Fuel and travelling expenses 127,779 144,982
Brokerage and commission 11.812 B3T3
Subscriptions and newspapers 13,315 10,117
Entertainment 43,044 34,753
Others 109,091 99,726
5,268,719 4,692,044
291 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit fee 3,600 3,000
Half yearly raview 1.380 1,150
Special certifications 3,986 5378
Out-of-pocket expenses 1,435 1,070
10,401 10,598

29.2 It includes gratuity accrued pertaining to outsourced staff amounting to Rs. 18.34 million (2014: Rs. 28.09 million).

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
30. OTHER PROVISIONS { WRITE OFFS [/ (REVERSALS)
Provision against other assets 14.3 699,637 -
Other provisions / (reversal) 301 63,000 (38,019)
Write offs 339 -
762,976 (38,019)

30.1 This represents payment of Rs. 25 million to & customer for settlement of claim and provision of Rs. 38 million in respeact
of a claim from a foreign supplier of the customer decreed by Hanorable Peshawar High Court (PHC), The Bank has filed
an appeal before the PHC which is pending adjudication. However, management (being prudent) has recorded the provision
in these financial statements:
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2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
3. OTHER CHARGES
Penalties Imposed by SBP a1.1 37,178 5,687
Operational loss 40,405 1,875
Waorker's Welfare Fund - 2,682
Impairment in value of Non-Banking Assets - 17,183
77,583 27,427
311 These reprasent penalties imposed by SBP on various non-compliances related to rules and regulations
32, TAXATION 2015 2014
Rupees in '000
Current
- for the year - -
- prior year ‘ {92,322) -
(92,322) =
Deferred
- for the year [ 220,419 (44;5-5:51:
- prior year = 5
220,419 (44,555)
128,097 (44,555)
321 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
(Loss) / profit before tax {1.839,702) 131,415
Tax rate 35% 35%
Tax at applicable rate (643,896) 45,995
Permanent difference 18,654 1,880
Deterred tax assel / minimum tax credit written off / adjusted 490,900 -
Others 6,245 {(3,430)
(128,097) 44 555

322 The income ta¥ returns of the Bank have been submitted up to Tax Year 2015, The Bank has filed appeals before ATIR
against certain disallowances amounting to Rs. 1,986 million made by Tax officer for assessment ( tax year(s) 2000-2001,
2001-2002, 2002-2003 and 2004. The disallowances amounting to Rs. 682 million in respect of lax years 2003 and 2008
are pending at CIR (A). Management is confident that the outcome of these appeals would be in favor of the Bank.

323 Income tax returns for tax years 2011 and 2014 were selected for audit. The proceedings of the audit are in process, no
order has been passed by the relevant tax authorities. The proceedings w/s 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance regarding
monitoring of withholding taxes pertaining to the tax years 2011 to 2014 were completed. Orders were issued by the
Assessing Officer creating a tax demand of Rs. 38 million along with default surcharge of Rs. 17 million. The Bank has
filed an appeal for all the orders raised.

324 The Bank's retum in respect of AJK operations have been submitted up to and including Tax Year 2015. Certain appeals
were filed before the various appellate forums which are pending adjudication. Management is confident that the outcome
of these appeals would be in favor of the Bank.
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2015 2014
Note
33. (LOSS) | EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
(Loss) / profit after taxation for the year - atiributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Bank for basic and diluted (Rupees in '000) (1.711,605) 86,860
Weighted average number of basic outstanding
ordinary shares during the year (Numbers in '000) 2,943,992 2,741,854
Weighted average number of diluted outstanding
ardinary shares during the year (Numbers in '000) 33.1 2,943,992 3,621,854
Basic (loss) [ eamings per share (Rupee) (0.58) 0.03
Diluted (loss) | earnings per share (Rupee) (0.58) 0.02
331 As disclosed in note 21, The Board of Directors of the Bank has approved the exercise of call option in respect of CPS,
therefore there is no change in weighted average number of shares in current year.
2015 2014
Note Rupees in ‘000
34, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 7 7.343.,670 5.102.984
Balances with other banks B8 194,065 139,478
7,537,735 5,242 462
2015 2014
Number of persons
35. STAFF STRENGTH
Permanent 1.247 1,205
Temporary / Contractual basis 3 27
Bank's own staff strength at the end of the year 1,278 1,232
Qutsourced 351 1,875 1.674
Total staff strength 3,153 2,906
351 These exclude oulsourced security guards and commission based agents.
36. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS
36.1 Defined benefit plan

As disclosed In note 6.10.2, the Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its regular employees. The
entittement of the employees commences on completion of five years with the Bank beginning from January 01, 2005.
Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method has been used for actuarial valuation dated December 31, 2015, The financial
statements of the fund are separately prepared and audited and are not included as part of these financial statements.
Contribution funds are placed in bank account maintained with Silkbank in fixed deposit and super saver scheme at the

rates ranging from 4% to 6.5%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
36.1.1 Amount recognized in the balance sheet:
Present value of the defined benefit obligation 36.1.2 372,201 307,802
Less: Fair value of the plan assels 36.1.2 {413,870) (363,011)
Asset 14 {41,669) {55,209)
36.1.2 Movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets
2015
Present value Fair value Total
of defined of plan
benefit assets
obligation
Rupees in '000
As at January 1, 2015 307,802 (363,011) (55,209)
Current service cost 57.539 - 57,539
Interest cost / (income) 33,080 (37,296) (4.216)
Bank's contributions - (53,324} (53,324)
Benefils paid {31,594) 31,594 -
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income:
Gain due to change in financial assumptions (2,867) * {2,867)
Loss due to change in demographic assumptions - - -
Loss due to changes in experience adjustment 8.241 - 8,241
Return on plan assets excluding amounts
included in interest income - 8,167 8,167
5,374 8,167 13,541
As at December 31, 2015 372,201 (413,870) {41,669)
= __ 2014 S
Present value Fair value Total
of defined of plan
benefit assels
obligation
Rupees in 000
As at January 1, 2014 251,241 (291.,806) (40.565)
Current service cost 49 355 - 49 355
Interest cost / (income) 33,010 {36,547) (3,537)
Bank's contributions - (45,819) (45,819)
Benefits paid (25,898) 25,898 -
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income: ) .
Gain due to change in financial assumptions {3,503) - {3,503)
Loss due to changes in experience adjustment 3,597 - 3,597
Return on plan assets excluding amounts
included in interest income - (14,737) (14,737)
94 (14,737) (14,643)
As at December 31, 2014 307,802 {363,011) (55,209)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
36.1.3 Amount recognised in profit and loss account:
Current service cost 57,539 49 355
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 33,080 33.010
Interest income on plan assets {37,296) {36,547)
28 53,323 45,818
36.1.4 Remeasurements recognised in OCI for the year
Actuarial loss on obligation 5,374 94
Actuarial loss / (gain) on plan assets 8,167 {(14,737)
13,541 {14.643)
36.1.5 Movement of net defined benefit asset:
Net defined benefit asset at the beginning of the year (55,209) (40,565)
Charge for the year 36.1.3 53,323 45,818
Remeasurements - gains recognized in OCl during the year 36.1.4 13,541 {14.643)
Bank's contributions 36.1.2 (53.324) {45,818)
Net defined benefit asset at the end of the year {41,669) (55,209)
36.1.6 Actual return on plan assets 29,129 _ 51,284
36.1.7 Principal actuarial assumptions
Financial assumptions
Discount factor used 9.00% 10.50%
Expected increase in eligible pay * 8.00% 9.50%
Demographic assumptions
Maortality rates (for death in service) SLIC (2001-05)-1 SLIC (2001-05}-1
Rates of employee turnover Ultra Heavy Rates Ulira Heavy Rates
Normal retirement age (years) 60 years 60 years

" Salary increments were assumed to be given on January 01, each year.

36.1.8 The discount rate of 9.00% (per annum compound) is representative of yields on Pakistan Investment Bonds and high
quality term finance certificates.

36.1.9 The expected charge for the year 2016 is Rs. 59.298 million.

36.1.10 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

‘Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Rupees in "000
Discount rate 1% (20,009) 22,284
Salary growth rate 1% 24,1086 {21,9986)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumplions constant In
practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity
of the defined benefil obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculating net defined benefit assel recognised within the statement of financial position.
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for the year ended December 31, 2015

401

40.2

Balances

Loans

Loans outstanding at the beginning
of the year

Loans given during the year

Loans repaid / adjusted during
the year

Loans autstanding at the and of
the year

Deposits

Deposits at the beginning of the year

Deposit received during the year

Deposits repaid [ adjusted during
the year

Deposits at the end of the year
Investments - Shares

At the beginning of the year
Investment made during the year
Investments redeemed / impaired /
adjusted during the year
Investrments at the end of the year

Transactions

Short term employment benefits

Termination benefits

Mark-up earned on advances

Mark-up paid on deposits

Services rendered / goods received

Meeting fee of non-execulive
directors

Share of profit from Associate

2015 2014

Key Associated Key Associated

CEO & management companies CEO& management companies &
Directors personnel & common Directars  personnel commaon

& Others directorship & Others  directorship

Rupees in '000

3,599 2,742 1,190,282 1,896 4,009 778,814
15,210 4,297 4,424,337 1,868 20,316 4,320,967

(18,659)  (2,969) (3,936,960) (265)  (21,583) (3.909,499)

150 4,070 1,677,659 3,589 2,742 1,190,282

13,846 136,117 1,492,381 38,022 2483389 109,568
364,138 §©,962,558 11,875,907 454,707 1,062221 2,654 874

(359,894) (8,028,532) (10,162,939) (518,883) (1,174,443) (1,272,061)

18,090 1,070,143 3,205,348  13.846

““““ 1561171402381

< Z 176,748 : - 207475

d . 113,610 . - 67,502

- - (58,595) g - (98,229)

2 s 231,763 = — 176,748
106,994 299,726 - 99556 344,282 s
8.231 21,667 : 7.963 22,579 -

501 913 80,616 256 831 93,104

662 15,024 192,121 1.404 5133 60,098
- 141,951 83,353 - 132,410 68.272

19,155 -

- 23,711 :
3 X 13,041 -

9,382

Deposits of employees' Provident Fund and employees' Gratuity Fund - Rs. 1,027 million (2014: 776 million) carries mark-
up at the rates ranging from 5.5% to 15% (2014: 10% to 15%).

Balances pertaining to parties that were related at the beginning of the year but ceased to be so related during any part of
the current year are not reflected as part of the closing balance of the current periad. The same are accounted for through

the movement presented above.
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for the year ended December 31, 2015

412  Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)

Commeon Equity Tier 1 capital {CET1): Instruments and reserves

00 =~ W & Wk =

9

Fully Paid-up Capital

Balance in Share Premium Account

Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares

Discount on Issue of shares

General/ Stalutory Reserves

Gain/(Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge

Unappropriated/unremitted profits/ (losses)

Minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued
to third parties by consolidated bank subsidiaries (amount
allowed in CET1capitail of the consoclidation group)

CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments

10 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1

11

Comman Equity Tier 1

Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital

12

13
14
15

16
17
18
19
20
21

Qualifying Additional Tier-1 capital instruments plus any
related share premium

of which: Classified as equity

of which: Classified as liabilities

Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued to third parties by
consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed in group AT 1)

of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out

AT1 before regulatory adjustments

Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital

Additional Tier 1 capital after regulatory adjustments

Additional Tier 1 capital recognised for capital adequacy

Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) (11+20)

Tier 2 Capital

22
23
24

25
26

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
a7

38
39

Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel Il plus any
related share premium

Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangement
Issued under pre-Basel 3 rules

Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated
subsidiaries (amount allowed In group tier 2)

af which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out

General provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to
maximum of 1.25% of Credil Risk Weighted Assets

Revaluation Reserves (net of taxes}

of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed asseis

of which: Unrealised gains / losses on AFS

Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves

Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)

T2 before regulatory adjustments

Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital

Tier 2 capital (T2) after regulatory adjustments

Tier 2 capital recognised for capital adequacy

Portion of Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital

Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy

TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (21+37)
Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
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Note

41.2.5

4121

4122

41.2.3

41.5

2015 2014
Rupees in ‘000
79,693,394 28,716,048
(56,566,725) (13.284,674)

180,134 180,134

(12,212,853)

(10,322,060)

11,093,950 5,289 448
1,661,562 1.116,038
9,432,388 4,173,410
2,200,000 2,200,000
2,200,000 2,200,000
2,200,000 2,200,000

25,501 28.785
2,174,499 2,171,215
2,174,499 1,138,203

11,606,888 5,311,613

515,802 427,612
634,842 531,282

20,424 35,080
1,171,068 093,984

25,501 28,785
1,145,567 965,199
1,145,567 965,199

- 1,033,013

1,145 567 1,998,212
12,752,455 7,309.825
92,135,474 789,961,633













Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

41.3 Capital Structure Reconciliation

Balance sheet of the!
published financial scaope of
statements consolidation
As at December 31, 2015
Rupees in ‘000

Under regulatory

Step |

Assets

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balanced with other banks

Lending to financial institutions
Investments

Advances -net

Operating fixed assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities

Cther liahilities

Total liabilities

Share capitall Head office capital account
Advance against proposed issue of right shares
Discount on issue of right shares

Reserves

Convertible preference shares

Unappropriated / Unremitted profit / {losses)
Total equity

Surplus on revaluation of assets

Total liabilities and equity
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7.343 670 7,343,670
194,065 194,065
6.777.944 6,777,944
34,989,068 34,999,068
61,074,207 61,074,207
4.496 648 4,496,648
4,180,969 4,180,969
14.070,688 14,070,688
133,137,259 133,137,259
2,413,342 2,413,342
33,230,182 33,230,182
81,097,581 81,097.581|
14,145 14,145
1,805,347 1,805,347
118,560,597 118,560,597
77,998,099 77,998,099
(56,566,725 (56,566,725)
180,134 180.134/
2,000,000 2,000,000}
2,200,000 2,200,000
(11,334,916 (11,334,918}
14,476,592 14,476,592
100,070 100,070
133,137,259 133,137,259







Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015

| Balance sheet as ‘m‘

Step 1l

published financial
statements

Under regulatory

scope of
consolidation

Discount on issue of right shares
Reserves
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1(provide breakup)
of which: porlion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Convertible preference shares
Unappropriated profit/ (losses)
Minority Interest
of which: portion gligible for inclusion in CET1
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in AT1
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Surplus on revaluation of assets
of which; Revaluation reserves on Fixed Assets
of which: Unrealised Gains / Losses on AFS
In case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1)
Total liabilities & equity

As at December 31, 2015
Rupees in ‘000

(56,566,725)  (56,566,725)
180,134 180,134
180,134 180.134|

2,200,000 2.200.000

{11,334.918) (11,334,918)
100,070 100,070
£9,588 69.588
30,482 30,482

133,137,259 133,137,259

Basel lll Disclosure Template (with added column)

Step 1l

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves

=i v n & o b —

8

Fully Paid-up Capital/ Capital deposited with SBP

Balance in Share Pramium Accounl

Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares

General/ Statutory Reserves

Gain/(Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge
Unappropriatedfunremitted profits/ (losses)

Minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued
to third parly by consclidated bank subsidiaries (amount allowed
in CET1 capital of the consolidation group)

CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments

9

10
11
12

13
14
15
16
17

Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)

All other intangibles [net of any associated deferred tax liability)
Shortfall of pravisions against classified assets

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those
arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)
Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments

Cash flow hedge reserve

Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments

Securitization gain on sale

ANNUAL REPORT | 2015

| Component of |
regulatory capital|
reported by bank|

Source based on
reference number

from step 2

79.693.394

Rupees in 000

(56,566,725
180,134

(12,212,853,

11,093,950

306,829

288,694

81,693

(s)

(u)

{w)

(x)

{i) - (o)
(k)= (p
(f

{(h) - (r} " x%
{0 - (9 " x%
(d)

Reference

ad

ab
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41.5 Risk Weighted Assets

The capital requirements for the banking group as per the major risk categories should be indicated in the manner given below:-

Capital Requirements Risk Weighted Assels
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014

Credit Risk
On-Balance sheet

Portfolios subject to standardised approach (Simple or Comprehensive)
e.g. Cash & cash equivalents

Sovereign

Public Sector entities

Banks 32,139 29,638 321,390 296,375
Corporate 3,760,855 3,350.375 37,808.550 33.503,750
Retail 1,304,224 1,208,159  13.942.235 12,981,585
Residential Morlgages 71,072 57,927 710,722 579,270
Past Due loans 392 847 341,253 3.926.470 3,412,529
Defarred tax asset 258,093 90,772 2,580,925 807,718
Operating Fixed Assets 418982 423477 4. 189,818 4,234,766
Other assets 1.468.537 1,065,963 14,685,375 10,659,625

Portfolios subject to Internal Rating Based (IRB) Approach
e.g. Corporate; Sovereign, Corporate, Retail, Securitization etc.

Off-Balance sheet

Non-market related
e.qg. Financial guarantees, acceptances, performance

related commitments, trade related etc. 435,829 363.464 4,368,287 3,634,643
Market related
e.q. Foreign Exchange contracts/ derivatives etc. 4.082 4.984 40.818 49 838

Equity Exposure Risk in the Banking Book

Under simple risk weight method . 2 = -

e.g. Listed, Unlisted 198 367 1.988 3,672
Under Internal models approach = s = =
Market Risk
Capital Requirement for porifolios subject to

Standardised Approach
Interest rate risk 17,510 136,316 175,096 1,363,163
Equity position risk 167 646 138,135 1676465 1,381,348
Foreign Exchange risk - 4,366 - 43,663

Capital Requirement for portfolios subject to
Internal Models Approach

Operational Risk 791.734 690.969 7.917.335 6.909,688
Capital Requirement for operational risks
TOTAL 9,213,549 7,996,163 92,135,474 79,961,633
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42.1.4 Segmental information

42 1.4.1 Segments by class of business

Chemical and pharmaceuticals
Agribusiness

Cement

Sugar

Textile

Footwear and leather gamments
Autormiobile [ transportation equipment
Electronics and electrical appliances
Power (elecincity), gas, water, sanitary
Financial

Insurance

Individuals

Exports / imporis and trading

Hotel and resorts
Telecommunications

Real estate

Others

Chemical and pharmaceuticals
Agribusiness

Cemeant

Sugar

Textile

Footwear and leather garments
Automobile [ transportation equipment
Electronics and electrical appliances
Power (elecricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary
Financial

Insurance

Individuals

Exports / Imports & Trading

Hotel & Resoris

Telecommunications

Real estate

Others

2015
Advances Deposits Contingencies and
(Gross) commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 in '000 in '000

(Note 11) (Note 17) (Note 23)

1,885,359 2.8% 847,540 1.0% 278,318 0.9%
969,850 1.4% 7,363 0.0% - 0.,0%
516.975 0.8% 543,948 0.7% 197,305 0.7%

4,848,250 71.2% 43,892 0.14% 336,966 1.1%

4,306,109 6.4% 283,263 0.3% 593,199 2.0%
305,640 0.5% 3,93 0.0% 107,659 0.4%
733,341 1.1% B9.678 0.1% 44 565 0.1%

2,027,300 3.0% 28,775 0.0% 603,604 2.0%
668,688 1.0% 3,636,423 4.5% 82,735 0.3%

2,146,831 3.2% 3,354,761 4.1% 15470664 51.0%

- 0.0% 60,592 0.1% - 0.0%
13,087,003 19.5% 42625192 52.6% - 0.0%

2,230,883 3.3% 1,318,852 1.6% 1,365,885 4.5%

1,224,855 1.8% 18,377 0.0% 152,409 0.5%
364,578 0.5% 219,819 0.3% 418,801 1.4%

7,823,069 11.7% 30,978 0.0% 1,778,703 5.9%

23,906,609 357% 27984197 345% B913,734 29.4%
67,045,340 100% 81,097,581 100% 30,344,607 100%
2014
Advances Deposits Contingencies and
(Gross) commitments
Rupees Percent  Rupees Percent i"\;upees Percent
___In'000 _in '000 _In '000

{Note 11) (Note 17) {Note 23)

2,042,953 3.2% 533,688 0.8% 310,957 1.0%
572,939 0.9% 25,110 0.0% 12,081 0.0%
325 486 0.5% 565,609 0.8% 294 239 1.0%

3,889,453 6.0% 1,707 0.0% 323,493 1.1%

6,322,766 9.8% 238,242 04% 1,205,754 4.0%
323,096 0.5% 4,235 0.0% 86,968 0.3%
879,024 1.4% 180,862 0.3% 61,066 0.2%

2128747 3.3% 16,388 0.0% 1.082816 3.6%
705433 1.1% 2,515,782 3.7% 850,322 2.8%

1,723,958 2.7% 2,582,283 38% 16418974 54.6%

. 0.0% 287,763 0.4% - 0.0%
10,636,834 16.5% 37,262,350 54.2% - 0.0%

2,738,804 43% 603,899 0.9% 783,206 2.6%

1,159613 1.8% 23,987 0.0% 70.859 0.2%
918,204 1.4% 550,946 0.8% 236,019 0.8%

5,115,998 7-59% 1,404,010 2.0% 1,939,192 6.5%

24,933,703 38.7% 21973388 320% 6381258 21.3%
64,417,139 100% B8,770,255 100% 30,057,005 100%
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42.1.4.2 Segment by sector

Public / Government
Private

Public/Government
Private

2015
Advances Deposits Contingencies and
(Gross) commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in ‘000 in "000 in ‘000
- 0% 12,928,564 16% 8,839,726 29%
67,045,340 100%  6B.168.717 84% 21,504,881 T1%
67,045,340 100% 81,097,581 100%_ 30,344,607 100%
2014
Advances Deposits Contingencies and
{Cross) comrmitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in'000 in '000 in '000

: 0% 8,631,045 13% 7,033,057 23%
64,417,138 100% 60,139,210  87% 23023948  77%
64.417.139  100% 68.770.255  100% 30.057.005  100%

42.1.4.3 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business segment

Agribusiness

Textlle

Chemical and pharmaceuticals
Cement

Footwear and leather garments
Autormobile and transportation equipment
Electranics and electrical appliances
Exports { Imporis

Financial

Services

Individuals

Others

: 2015 _2014
Classified  Specific Classified  Specific
Advances Provision Advances Provision

Held Held

Rupees in ' 000 o
140,292 120,317 104,316 46,767
1,601,162 1,402,033 1,652 153 1,307,324
361,055 235,948 553825 413308
54,289 54,289 54,289 48,860
137,574 47478 143,554 113,125
706,566 563,547 767.052 501,336
734,219 715,796 836,110 538,836
519,648 290,423 558573 300,835
486,140 488,548 81,373 81,373
81,697 26,274 216861 120,358
1,852,334 1,187,714 1412450 753,924
1,844,937 322,964 1,B41591 796,604
8,519,913 5455331 8221947 5,022 650

42.1.4.4 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by sector

Pubiic / Government
Private
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2015 2014
Classified Specific Classified  Specific
Advances Provision Advances Provision

Rupees in ' 000

8,619,913 5455331 8,221,947 5,022,650
8,519,913 5455331 B,221947 5022650
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2015
Net
Assets Liabilities Off-balance foreign
sheet items  currency
exposure
Rupees in ‘000

Pakistan Rupese 130,480,949 110,903,538 (4,941,148) 14,636,263
United States Dollar 2,200,627 6,156,942 3,845,439 {(110,876)
Great Britain Pound 374,699 960,387 611,380 25,692
Japanese Yen _ . 16,888 17,406 518
Euro 63,755 522,842 466,923 7.836
Other currencies 17.229 - - 17.229
133,137,259 118,560,587 - 14,576,662

2014
Net
Assets Liabilities Off-balance foreign
sheet items currency
exposure
Rupees in ‘000

Pakistan Rupee 100,726,506 87,023,148 (5,246,082) 8,457,266

United States Daollar 1,713,863 5.815,137 4,135,181 33,987

Great Britain Pound 231,098 813.618 583,196 676
Japanese Yen 669 - - 669

Euro 57,403 583,123 527 735 2,015

Other currencies 6,214 - - 6,214
102,735,853 94,235,026 8,500,827

42.2.2 Equity position risk
The Bank |s exposed fo equity price changes on its investments in Trading Book. These equity exposures are primarily
related to market price movements in local equity market index. Changes in the overall value of equity trading book are
recorded through profit and loss account. Bark's Investment Committee approves the investment stocks and their limits. It
also reviews the portfolio with mark to market position on regular basis. Stop loss limits have been approved and are
monitored on a regular basis.
42.2.3 Mismatch of Interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities
2015
Eflectiie Exposed to Yield | Interest risk
bl Over 1 D3 Over & Quer1 Ot Qver3 Ovees "m"
beresl Upta 1 ¥ B Aowe eld |
Tatal ] [ Mot tod 1 0% 1o M piesl,
iy Varn e | | Months || lo¥veer || Yeas e Yesrs 10YeArS, | |insarest righ
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Balance as per statement Balance as per statement
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42,3 Liquidity risk
The risk of losses because the Bank's normal liquidity reserves are not sufficient to meet its obligations.

Bank's approach 1o liquidity risk management is to ensure as far as possible that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due. The Fund Management Policy is formulated keeping In view SBP's guidelines on nisk management and
Basel Il pnnciples on sound liquidity management.

The Bank has an Asset and Liability Management Committee {(ALCO) -and a Markel Risk Policy Committee (MRPC) that are
part of the framework for management of risk.

The ALCO/ MRPC is respensible for managing the composition of assets and liabilities management of liquidity, timely identification
of sources of market and liquidity risk, pricing of deposits and advances, deciding on the required maturity profile and the mix of
incremental assets and liabilities, defining the interest rate view of the bank and deciding on future strategies for reasury, reviewing
and articulating the funding policy; and evaluating the market and liquidity risks involved in launching of new products.

Liguidity contingency funding plans have been drawn up to ensure that altarnative funding strategies are in place when any of
the indicators being maonitored enter into the waming or stress zone and can be implemented on a timely basis to minimize the
liquidity risks that may anse upon the occurrence of an unanticipated change in market conditions.

42.3.1 Maturities of assets and liabilities - based on working prepared by the Asset and Liability Management Committee
(ALCQ) of the Bank

The maturities of Depesits and Cash and Balances with Treasury Banks are determined on the basis of study conducted by the
Bank based on past years data and the analysis reviewed by the ALCO from time to time.
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42.3.2 Maturities of assets and liabilities - based on contractual maturity of these assets and liabilities of the Bank
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42.4  Operational risk
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The risk of losses owing to deficient or erroneous internal procedures, human or system errors, or external events.

The Bank has in place robust; duly approved various policies, procedures and a Business Continuity Plan.

These are continuously reviewed to strengthen operational controls. Risk policy sets minimum standards and requires all
business units fo identify and assess risks. The business units are responsible for day-to-day monitoring of operational risks
and for limiting losses as a rasult thereof. They also report operational risk events in the management reporting system.
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Emaan Islamic Banking Business
for the year ended December 31, 2015

Islamic Banking Business (EMMN Annexure - Il
The Bank is operating 10 Islamic Banking branches at the end of 2015 (2014 : 10)
2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 533,473 471,030
Balances with other banks 17.765 4,036
Due from financial institutions - 510,194
Investments 1,123,150 800,202
Islamic financing and related assets A=2.1 4,647,752 5,745,328
Operating fixed assets 98,639 109,688
Other assets 2,018,398 2,233,585
Total Assets 8,439.177 9,874,063
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 632,237 104,464
Due to financial Institutions - 26,888
Deposits and other accounts
- Current accounts 1,233,157 1,839,729
- Saving accounts 1,448,097 1,410,190
- Term deposits 1,836,938 2,313,292
- Dthers 40,531 35.000
- Deposit from financial institutions - remunerative 2,046,009 1,041,647
- Deposits from financial institutions - non-remunerative 60 204
Due to Head Office ; - 2,507,147
Other liabilities 50,395 56,901
Total Liabilities 7,287,424 9,335,462
NET ASSETS 1,151,753 538,601
REPRESENTED BY
Islamic Banking Fund 1,325,000 425,000
Reserves - -
Accumulated (loss) / profit (178,897) 114,821
1,146,103 539,821
Surplus on revaluation of assets 5,650 (1,220)
1,151,753 538,601
Contingencies and commitments A22
A-2.1  Islamic Financing and Related Assets
Financings / Investment Receivables
Murahaba 3.280,752 2,085 181
Musharaka - 3,450,147
Diminishing Musharaka 424,000 200,000
Musawammah 943,000 -
4,647,752 5,745,328
A-2.2 Contingencies and commitments
Guarantees favoring
- Government -
- Banking companies and other financial institutions - -
- Others 1,349,223 350,000
Commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts
Forward exchange contracts with State Bank of Pakistan,
banks and other institutions
- cale - .
- Purchase 471,961 251,297
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Emaan Islamic Banking Business
for the year ended December 31, 2015

Annexure - |l

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000
B) REMUNERATION TO SHARIA ADVISOR / BOARD 4,536 2,623
C) During the year no charity was credited to Charity Fund Account
nor any payment made out of it.
D) PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
Profit / return earned on financings, investments and placements 306.389 708,063 .
Return on deposits and others dues expensad (326,480) (316,425
Nel spread eamed (20,091) 391,638
Other Income
Fees, commission and brokerage income 9,932 13,438
{Loss) /'income from dealing in foreign currencies 3,739 1,583
Gain on sale of securities 10 11,965
Other income 3,124 . 1,285
Total other income 16,805 28.282
{3,286) 419,920
Other Expenses
Administrative expenses (290.432) ‘ (242,541 i
Other charges 3 - | (33{
(290,432) (242,574)
{Loss) / profit before taxation (293,718) 177.346
E) DISCLOSURES

The number and nature of pools maintained by the IBD along with their key features and risk and reward characteristics
are as follows:

Emaan Islamic Banking, the |slarmic Banking Division (IBD) of Silkbank Limited, has a well-defined profit and loss distnbution
and pool management framework for creation of one or more pools of assets to be financed by different types of deposits.
Currently, the IBD has the policy of maintaining a single Mudaraba Pool. All funds obtained through Islamic Banking operations
are being invested in this Common Mudaraba Pool. The key features and nisk / reward features of the same are given below:

Key Features

The Account Holder, in his capacity as the fund provider (called Rabbul Mal in Figh terminology) authorises the |IBD acting
as the investment manager (called Mudarib in Figh terminology) to invest the Account Holder’s funds on the basis of an
unrestricted Mudaraba agreement in line with rules and principles of Shari'a.

Under the unrestricted Mudaraba agreement, the |BD in its capacity as the fund manager invests the funds accepted from
Account Holders in Shari'a compliant financing and investments. The IBD receives a pre-agreed percentage (Mudarib Share)
of the profit generated from these activities.

in line with the principles of commingling Modaraba, where the Mudarib is permitted to commingle its own funds with the
funds received on the basis of the Modaraba, and to comply with the regulations of the SBP on creation of an Islamic Banking
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Milestones and Achievements

Business Growth

B The Bank was successful in raising Rs. 10 billion in 2015 through
the Rights lssue to become MCR and CAR compliant

B In order to manage the cost of funds, the Bank continued to
consolidate the pasition by decreasing expensive deposits and
replacing them with low cost deposits. Emaan banking also contributed
towards the growth of a deposit base with a favorable CASA mix
ratio and so support spreads

SILKBANK PERSONAL LOAN

yeaniandm
mar.ls up fnr

Consumer Banking

B The momentum In Personal Loans & Running Finance facility was
maintained with a combined year end 2015 ENR of Rs. 8.56 billion
vs. Rs. 8.9 billion in 2014

8 Margin at Rs. 844 million vs. budgel targel of Rs. 718 million

B Non-Funded Income at Rs. 160 million against budget of
Rs. 116 million

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Credit Cards

B In 2015 Ending Met Receivable (ENR) registered a growth of
31% with ENR of Rs. 2.46 billion against Rs. 1.88 billion at the
end of 2014

B Strong and aggressive growth in new cards acquisition. The total
Cards in Force (CIF) stood al 65,575 as of December 31, 2015

B Discounts at key merchant outlets enhanced card presence,
boosting Retall spend and building brand image

Emaan Islamic Banking

8 Deposit portfolio stands at Rs. 6.60 billion

B Deposit mix showed a positive improvement with CASAra
increasing ta 72%

B Financing portfolio slands al Rs. 4.6 billion

m LCand LG products launched and generated volurme of
Rs. 0.295 billion and Rs. 0.991 billion respectively




People Management

B Dedicated approximately 34,000 hours to training

B Initiated programs through Computer Based Testing (CBT) and
introduced e-Learning through a Digital Library

8 Launched SikClub for its emplayees, aimed at developing
informal relationship to foster greater camaraderie and teamwork
amongst staff

8 Automnated the hiring process to reduce the turnaround time
and coslt
. MITIVATIN

Alternate Delivery Channels

B Increase of VDC customer-base by 7,270 for the year 2015

INNEVAT ION

TEAME KX

® VDC Debit Card Retail Spending increased by 22.10% to
Rs. 1.14 billion in 2015

B ATM Transactions Volume increased by 12.69% from
Rs. 13.37 billion in 20714 to Rs. 15.07 billion in 2015

B ADC Services Enrallments for the Year: Customer Service & Quality
- 8MS Enroliments: 15,867
- E-Statement “Enrullmen!s 9,195 The Mystery Shopping Programme score, a nationwide independent
- Internet Banking Enroliments 7419 survey of customer frontline experience In top banks of Pakistan, stands
Mobile Banking Enroliments: 9.114 at 92%

Productivity

Rent rationalization contributed towards a T% save againsi
the budgel

Process re-engineering led to head counl saves in Bank operations

tility expense saves through energy efficiency, solar initiatives
and ongoing monitoring

Operations and Technology

Enhancements in SilkMobile App
Verified by Visa for Credil Cards

Investment Banking Group

B [BG spent most of 2015 working on intemal corporate finence
initiatives which culminated in the Rs. 10 billion Rights lssue

Data Center Establishment and Transition to Centrepoint
Biometric Verification System for account opening
Training Managemenl System

® At the same time it built a steady pipeline of debt and equity
transactions to be concluded post capital issuance
- Already, one of those transaclions has concluded, with mare
setto close in Q1 2016 &N

Special Assets Management

B Tolal support la P&L accoun! during period under review is
Rs. 1,968 million and NPL reduction is Rs. 2,166 million against
the budgeted amount of Rs. 1,755 millien and Rs. 1,537 million for
the year 2015 respectively

Contraclual Staff Management System

B SAM Team recovered a written off loan of Rs. 4 million

B The Real Estate Assets Management has also successiully sold
various praperties dunng the year 2015 worth Rs. 819 million
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Fulfilling our Responsibility

Silkbank remains committed to its social responsibility towards
the society it operates in. We continued to participate in comimunity
activities specially in the areas of health and education

Pakistan Navy & Engineering College
(NUST)

Recently Silkbank supported the "GREEN BUILDING
COMPETETION" at NUST. The initiative was aimad at inviting
students from across the cauntry to bring their unigue and
versatile ideas In the field of renewable energy, as well as towards
building energy efficient and environmentally friendly solutions
The event was well attended and provided lhe necessary
exposure to a new wave of
thinkers and innovators,

Silkbank in its quest
lo support and
promote sports
across the country,
sponsared the
Karachi Women's
Swimming =
Championship held

at Karachi !
Gymkhana in 2015.
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Responsibility

The Distinguished Secretaries' Society
of Pakistan (DSSP)

The Distinguished Secretaries' Society of Pakistan (DSSP) was
established in 1971 for Lady Secrataries serving at senior
positions in private, corporate and multinational companies.
Silkbank supported and honored the recent 44th Anniversary
Gala of the DSSP, recognizing the society and its members.

HR Metrics

Silkbank believes that development of human resource is Integral
to the sustainable growth of corporates, providing better
apportunities for success. In this regard. Silkbank supported a
conference on "Strengthening Human Governance for Sustainable
Ease of Doing Business Index in Pakistan" in 2015.




The Patients Aid Foundation

The Patient Aid Foundation aims at providing funding for medical
tests scans and medicines free of cost to the under-privileged
patients. Silkbank supported the Patient Aid Foundation charity
event aimed at fund raising for the cause of the poor patients.

Lahore Garrison Golf & Country Club

Silkbank paricipated in the All Pakistan Garrlson Open Golf
Tournament at the Lahore Garrison Golf & Country Club, which
credifed to be a huge success.

IBA Alumni Homecoming Dinner

The Institute of Business Administration is a prominent Business
School in Karachi. Established in 1955 in collaboration with the
Wharton School, it was the first business school in Asia set up
on the US-MBA model. Silkbank supported this educational
institution by
supporting the 1BA
Alumni Homecoming
dinner which served
as an opportunity to
foster networking
betwean the Alumni
and the corporate
sector,

T 1

The Defining Decades - Fashion Show

Greenwich University has a long established tradition of providing
students with challenges and opporiunities. This festival was
one of the series of eveént that students organize from the
unversity platform. Silkbank contributed to this cause which was
a display of different cultures & countries brought under one
roof,

Pakistan National Model ¢
United Nations'15 W

Silkbank enthusiastically supports education g\
and the extracurricular activities associated
with it Silkbank recently participated in the Model

United Nations Conference which aimed al educating participants
about current events and topics in international relations
diplomacy and the United Nations agenda in 2015,

Silkbank All Sindh Youth & Junior
Boxing Tournament

Silkbank contributed towards the promotion of boxing by
sponsoring the All Sindh Youth & Junior Boxing Toumament in
Lyari. The tournament invited young boxers from all over Sindh.
Silkbank provided
these boxers

a platform to
demonstrate

their talent.

Basant & Spring Gala

Defence Authority Country & Golf Club organized a Basant &
Spring Gala 2015. To welcome the colors of spring, Silkbank
sponsored the evenl "

which was a great )
success and was

attended by more
than 5000 people

fraom thie city,
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Ammar Alied
Branch Manager
Wasiridge Branch, Plot Na
ABR-4591, Weslridge Bazar Road
Wesindge-1, Rawalpindi
Tel: {N51) 6481544
(051 54875402
Fak: (0561) 5481543

Asil Siddique Butt
ArpaiBranch Manager
Bahria Town Branch
Flot Mo: 81, Civic Centre
Bahna Town, Rawalpindi
Tal: {051} 5731706
(051) 5731702-3
Fax: (051) 5731704

Haveed Qaiser
Branch Manager
Hazro Branch, Plot Nao: 8-,
3824, Allah Wala Chowk,
Circular Road, Mohatah Abdu,
iy
Tal: (057) 2313286
(057 2313282-84
Fa: (05T) 2313295

LAHORE EAST

Muhammad Ahmad Khan Mallk
Reglonal General Manager
Sitkbank Howse

14-Egerton Road, Lanore:

Tal. {04Z) 36302317

Fap {042) 36279272

Muhammad Naeem Dar
AraaiChief Manager
Main Ebranch,

Sikbank House
14-Egerton Road, Lahore.
Tel. [042) 363080556
Fax. [042) 36279272

Sheikh Mobeen Rafig
Branch Manager
Peco Road Branch,
57-1, B/ Township. Paco Read,
Lahares.,
Tal {0d42) 3512654045
104:2) 35125400
{042) 35125401
Few: (042 35125403

Muhammad Azeem Akhtar
Branch Managar
Alama |gba! Town Branch,

H-Hunza Biock Allama lgbal Towr,

Lahore,

Tel (042} 37400300
(042) 37HOS0 14415

Fax: (042) 37805868

Ghulam Rasool
Branch Manager
Thokar Migz Baig Branch,

7-B, Judicisl Coleny, Raimmd Road,

Thokar Niaz Barg, Lahaora

Tol: (042 35314045.46
{042) 35314049

Fax: {I42) 35374048

Mubammad Ahmed Khan Mallk
AreaiBranch Manager
Shedman Town Branch
118-4, Colony Mo 1
Shadman Town, Lahorg
Tal {042) 3742004547
{02 37420085
Fan: (042) 37420048

Muhammad Ghufran

ArealBranch Manager

Kaotwali Rosd Branch,

Kotwali Road, Fdisalabad

Tal' (041) 2619973
(041} 2643504

Fag. (041) 2812984

Nadeem Altal

Branch Manager

Sheikhopura Branch,

Sharif Plaza, Maim Lahome

-Bargodha Road,

Shaikhupurs

Tel: {056} 3813520
(055) 3812665

Faw! {056} 3810050

Saeed Ahmed Khan Niazi
Branch Manager

Sargodna Branch

Khayyam Choak, Gulberg Park,
Sargodha

Tel. (045) 3768101-2

Fan, (048} 3768103

Wasesam Ahmied Khan
Branch Manager

Johar Town Branch,

Block 15, M. M. & dabar Towr,
Lahore.

Tel (042) 35240200-52

Fax, (D42) 35240003

Umier Khan
Branch Manager
Shahalam Market Branch

15-8; Shahalam Markel, Lahare

Tal (042} 37376186
(042} ATATETAO-H2
Faw (D42} 37376183

Mahmood A. Khan

Branch Manager [A)

Ralwind Branch

Railway Road, Adjacent

Red Chilli Resleurant,

Raiwnd

Tel: (042) 35303815
(042 3539301113

Fax: (042) 35583814

Liaquat Afl

Branch Manager

Puil-111 Branch (Sargodhal,
Pull-111, Sargodha/Faizalahad
Road,

Sargodha

Tel: (D4R) 37918R0-82

Fax: (D48} 3781883

Mahmood A, Shelkh
Branch Manager
WAPDA Town Beanich,
11-G PA Housing Sooety,
{WARDA Town
Raundabout), Lahors.
Tal (042) 3518525

(DE2 35188520
Fax: (042} 35188527

Bhaikh Ahmed Mumtaz
Branch Man

Badaeni Bagh Rranch,

203 Geain Markel, Badam| Bagh
Lahore.

Tel: (D4Z) 377763

Fax! (042 37731365

Wasif Khalid Malik
Branch Manager

Circular Road Branch,

73, Gircular Road, Lahore.
Tek [042) 37658564

Fanc: (D42 ) ATEFIA3

LAHORE WEST

Sardar Kamran Nakal
Reglonal General Manager
. G M. Office, 97-AT-1
PEC Buirding, Libary
farket, Gultery, Lahome
Mob 0333-42711383
i (D42) 35B7B0T0-11
2] 357844032
Fax: ?042] 5873012

Nawazish All Hashmi
Branch Manager
Gujranwaia Branch
Plot Mo, 100 & 102, Monallsh Ehata
Nagar, Mear PS0 Pelrd Plmp, G T,
Roas, Guranwala.
Tel (055) 3250214
LGEb] 3731269
055) 3858 268-70
Fax: (056] 3856271

Nadeem Khawaja

Arga/Branch Manager

Sialkat Branch,

70, Pariz Road, Sialkot

Tel (D52) 4266778
(D52) 4557489
(052) 4557431

Fax: (DEZ] 4588002

Shakzad Afzal
Branch Operation Manager
Ciujrat Branch,
B-1711553-R-R, hear Eldgah
Masiid, & T, Road, Gujrat.
Tel! |Gh3] 531456

[D63) 3536262

(053} 3535144

(053] 3531472
Faw: (53] 3531732

Ayesha Hameed
Branch Manager
Gaulberg Branch,
87-A/0-1, P E. T Bullding, Literty
Roundabaut, Gulberg i1l Lahore.
Tel: (047) 35878010-11
{042) 35878351
Fan: (042) 35878042

Talfur Hamid
ArealBranch Manager
Garden Town Branch
Flat 1-4, Usman Black.
New Ganden Town
Lahare,
Tel: (D42) 35840306-8
C42) 35840300
Fax: (42} 35240301

M. Tagi Raza

Branch Manager

Model Town Branch,

16, Bank Square Market,

Todel Town,. Lahars,

Tet (D42} 35915580-81
42) 35815587

Fax: (D42} 35215583

Ml Aziz
Branch Manager
Mandr Bahauddm Branch,
T4, Sultan Plaza, Chowk
Bab-#-Farong, Mand| Bahauddin
Tol: (D546} 507060

{0546 50T054-55
Fax {054B) 507050

All Bokhary
Branch Manager
Foriress Stadium Branch,

13 Bridge Shop, Forlress Sadum,

Lohoda Canll Lahore

Tal: (D42Z) 36623284-55
{04 23 36623380

Faw: (042) 36623143

Ramiz Hassan Farooqui
Branch Manager
L-Block Gulberg Branch,
52 Gulberg-li, Kalma Chowk,
Lahore
Tael: (042 536857131-33
ﬁ'ﬂl«f:l A5BGTE4N
Fax (042} 35857262

Asif Kamal

Area/Branch Manager

Cavadry Graund Branch

20-Commercial Area, Cavairy

Ground, Lahore.

Tel: {042 366102735
{042y 3640280

Fax! (042) 36610279

Imran Ejzz

Branch Manager
Balzpur Branch,

Main G.T. Road, Batepur
Lahovre Lines

Tel: (D42) 3658038183
Dir. (D42} 36580387
Fax (04236580384

MULTAN REGION

Muhammad Raza All
Regicnal General Manager
100, Bosan Rosd; Gulgasht,

Bulian
Tel: (061) 6750260
Fax (0816750253

Amjad Altaf
Branch Manager
Bahswalpur Branch,
MNear Fawwara Chowk;
Off: Alrmadpur Eaat Road,
Bahawallpur,
Tol: (062) 2876184

(062) 28T 7E20-21
Faw (DE2) 2377531

Atshan Noreen

Branch Manager

Oara Ghazi Knan Branch,
Block 13, Hospital Chowk,

Opp. DHG Hospital, Railway Road,

Dera GHazl Khan.
Tal: (064) 2466682
Fax (064) 2466653

Rouf Jamal
Area Manager
Multarn Branch;,
10-A, Bosan Road, Gulgash
fllltan
Tel [061) BT50251
0T BYS0255
063 ) E750256
Fax: |061) BT50253

Zulfigar Ali Nasir

Branch Manager

Sahhwal Branch

Khasra No. 49348, Khawet No.07,
rooni Na. 07, Jail Road,
1Lines, Sahiwsl

(D407 d2zaeap

G40 4224184

Fax: kmm APFFE15

Adil Jatel

Branch Manager
Sukkur Branch,
Husaini Road, Sukkur.
Tel. [071) 5619141-43
Faw: (OT1) 5619451

Muhammad Arif Irfan
Area Manager

Larkana Branch,
Pakistan Chowk, Larkans
Tel.  [074) 4059499

Fa ((074) 4055539

Mustafa Haider

Branch Manager

Crasim Branch (huktan),

75, Qasim Road, 5. P Chowk,
Multan,

Tel (G611 4587711

Fax: (061) 4586880

Muhammad Akmal Abbasi
Branch Manager

Frahim Yar Khan Sranch
26-Shahl Road, Rahirn Yar Khan
Tet [068) GRE4345, G8R1302
Faw; (068} BATE405
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